
 

City of Dillingham  October 3, 2019 
Regular Council Meeting Page 1 of 2 

Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 

Council Members  

 Chris Napoli (Seat A)  Vacant (Seat B)  Aksel Buholm (Seat C) 
 Curt Armstrong (Seat D)  Andy Anderson (Seat E)  Gregg Marxmiller (Seat F) 

  
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

David B. Carlson Council Chambers 
Dillingham City Hall, 141 Main Street, Dillingham, AK 99576 (907) 842-5212 

 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. OCTOBER 3, 2019 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a. Regular Council Meeting, September 9, 2019   ..................................................... page 3 
 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-29; A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Expressing 

Thanks and Commendation to Ms. Susanna Henry   ............................................. page 7 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 

a. City Manager and Staff Reports   .......................................................................... page 9 
 

b. Standing Committee Reports  ............................................................................... page 37 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 

 
8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

a. Introduce Ordinance No. 2019-05; An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council Modifying 
the Land Use Restrictions on a Portion of Block 5, U.S. Survey 2732, Dillingham Townsite  
 .............................................................................................................................. page 41 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-25; A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing the 
City Manager to Approve a Collective Bargaining Agreement Between the City of Dillingham 
and Public Safety Employee Association   ............................................................. page 55 
 

c. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-30; A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Supporting 
Curyung Tribal Council’s BBEDC Arctic Tern Grant Application for Participation at the 2019 
AFN Elders and Youth Conference   ..................................................................... page 57 
 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Citizen Committee Appointments 

1) Senior Advisory Commission – 1 seat open 
2) Library Advisory Board – 1 seat open 
3) Friends of the Landfill – 1 seat open   .............................................................. page 67 

 



 

City of Dillingham  October 3, 2019 
Regular Council Meeting Page 2 of 2 

b. Progress Report 
1) Dave Carlson House Property 
2) Territorial School  

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Schedule Special Meeting for October 10, 2019 (DMC 3.70.040) (Clerk Note: DMC 
2.09.020 Special Meetings. No business shall be transacted at the meeting that is 
not mentioned in the notice.)  
1) Certify the October 1, 2019 Election  

 
b. Bristol Bay Bud Company, LLC Retail Marijuana Store License Renewal   ...... page 69 
 
c. Adopt Action Memorandum No. 2019-11; Modify FY20 Aggregate Contract   .. page 75 
 

11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a. Legal Matters: Union Negotiations, and Legal Update 
 
b. City Manager Evaluation 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT  
 



City of Dillingham  September 9, 2019  
Regular Council Meeting Page 1 of 4 

 
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

September 9, 2019 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Thursday, September 9, 2019, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Ruby called the meeting to order at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Mayor Ruby was present. 
 
Council members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 

Andy Anderson Curt Armstrong Aksel Buholm  
Gregg Marxmiller Chris Napoli  
   

 
Staff in attendance: 

Tod Larson Lori Goodell   
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a. Regular Council Meeting, August 1, 2019 
 

MOTION:  Chris Napoli moved and Aksel Buholm seconded the motion to adopt the minutes of August 
1, 2019. 

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
There was no consent agenda. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Chris Napoli seconded the motion to remove item 9c, Resolution 
2019-28, and approve the amended agenda. 

 
VOTE: The motion passed as amended unanimously by voice vote. 

 
5. SPECIAL BUSINESS 

a. Oath of Office – Trevor Farnsworth, Patrol Officer 
The Mayor administered the oath of office to Officer Farnsworth. 

 
6. STAFF REPORTS 

a. City Manager reported on the following: 
 ACS sent information regarding updating 34 computers to address Microsoft 7 not being 

supported after January 14, 2020.  They are also working on an estimate to update the servers.  
This information will come to council at the October meeting. 

 PSEA negotiations are scheduled for September 12-13. 
 The Public Works Director start date is still to be determined. 
 Public Safety access at the airport has been resolved and an MOU is being discussed. 

 
b. Standing Committee Reports 

Code Review Committee: 
There was no Code Review Committee report. 
 

Page 3 of 98



City of Dillingham  September 9, 2019  
Regular Council Meeting Page 2 of 4 

Finance and Budget Committee:  
 Sales tax revenue is higher than budgeted. 
 Debt load spreadsheet will be provided in the next council packet. 
 The 2018 audit has been delayed and should be available for the October council meeting. 

 
The Mayor informed Council with the resignation of Council Member Chris Maines the chair of the Code 
Review Committee has been filled by Chris Napoli; and the new Mayor Pro Tempore is Curt Armstrong. 
 
Grandma’s House: 

 All residents have been successfully relocated. 
 Discussions have begun regarding what the ‘next steps’ should be. 
 Liabilities and inventories will be evaluated. 
 Council will be updated as the process to move forward is determined. 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
There were was no public hearing. 

 
8. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
Tim Metzger, Census Bureau: 
The 2020 census will be conducted in January.  The Census Bureau is looking for local individuals to 
apply for employment.  Applications can be filled out online. 
 
9.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-26; A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Accepting the 
Resignation of Chris Maines and Offer Thanks and Commendation for his Service on the 
Dillingham City Council 

 
MOTION:  Chris Napoli moved and Gregg Marxmiller seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 2019-26. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-27; A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing the 
City of Dillingham to Accept a Loan from the Alaska Department of Environmental 
Conservation Alaska Drinking Water Fund for Improvements to Community Water 
Infrastructure 

 
MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Chris Napoli seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 2019-27. 
 
It was noted the planners report and CIP updates are helpful to follow which projects are being 
discussed. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-28; A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Supporting 

Curyung Tribal Council’s BBEDC Arctic Tern Grant Application for Hosting a Phlight Club 
Event (This item was deleted from the agenda) 
 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Citizen Committee Appointments 

1) Senior Advisory Commission – 1 seat (no letters of interest received) 
There were no letters of interest. 

 
2) Library Advisory Board – 2 seats, two letters of interest 

 

Page 4 of 98



City of Dillingham  September 9, 2019  
Regular Council Meeting Page 3 of 4 

Mayor Ruby recommended to reappoint Amy Ruby and Lee Ann Andrew to the Library Advisory 
Board. 
 
The Mayor disclosed Amy Ruby is her sister.  However, there is no fiscal gain in this position. 
 
MOTION: Chris Napoli moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to concur with the Mayors 
recommendation. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed as amended by unanimous voice vote. 
 

a. Progress Report 
1) Dave Carlson House Property 
2) Territorial School  

There were no progress reports. 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Approve Action Memorandum 2019-06; Award a Contract for the FY20 Aggregate Bid 
 

MOTION:  Chris Napoli moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum 2019-06. 

 
It was noted the sand has not passed the lab test.  This item will need to be awarded to a different 
vendor if this cannot be remedied. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 
b. Approve Action Memorandum 2019-09; Award a Contract for ITB 2019-05, Dillingham 

Streets Rehabilitation   
 

MOTION:  Chris Napoli moved and Aksel Buholm seconded the motion to approve Action Memorandum 
2019-09. 

 
VOTE: The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

c. Approve Action Memorandum 2019-10; Award a Contract for ITB 2019-07, Water System 
Improvements   

 
MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Aksel Buholm seconded the motion to approve Action 

Memorandum 2019-10. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
12. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
There was no citizen discussion. 
 
13. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Gregg Marxmiller: 

 Thanked the Mayor for the letter sent to the Department of Law. 
 
Andy Anderson: 

 Thanked the Mayor for the letter sent to the Department of Law. 
 
Chris Napoli: 

 Thanked staff for their reports, especially the report from planning with the breakdown of 
projects. 

Page 5 of 98



City of Dillingham  September 9, 2019  
Regular Council Meeting Page 4 of 4 

 Stated the Bingman cleanup project is looking good. 
 
14. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
Alice Ruby: 

 Noted the progress made at the Bingman property. 
 Commented on the District Attorney vacancy and the need to stay vigilant to keep this post filled. 
 Noted the joint city/school board letter regarding bus safety. 
 Stated the city has no liability for Grandma’s House.  MEAL has the responsibility and liability.  

There has been no request of the City at this time. 
 Requested the Bennett family be surrounded and supported during this time of loss. 
 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
a. Personnel Issue – City Manager Evaluation 

 
MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Chris Napoli seconded the motion to enter into executive 
session to discuss a Personnel Issue – City Manager Evaluation. [7:53 p.m.] 

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
MOTION:  Chris Napoli moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to exit executive session. 

[8:14 p.m.] 
 
Question called, no objections. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT  
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 8:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby 
       [SEAL] 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Lori Goodell, City Clerk 
 
Approval Date: ________________________ 

Page 6 of 98



 Meeting Date: October 3, 2019 
  

  
   
City of Dillingham                                                                                                       Resolution No.2019-29 
Page 1 of 1   

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-29 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL EXPRESSING THANKS AND 
COMMENDATION TO MS. SUSANNA HENRY 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Susanna Henry served as the Refuge Manager for the Togiak National 
Wildlife Refuge and has been stationed in Dillingham; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Henry with the support of her husband, Bob, and family has been a 
dedicated and valuable citizen volunteer during their time in Dillingham, and  
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Henry contributed countless hours of volunteer effort to local civic 
organizations and events including the Beaver Round Up committee, the Dillingham Arts 
Council (where she held an office and helped with the Christmas Bazaar and more), the 
Color Run (an event designed to promote good health practices), providing support to the 
Alaska Rural Veterinary Outreach (ARVO) clinic in Dillingham, aluminum recycling at the 
Dillingham Senior Center, volunteer member of the Friends of the Landfill and critical 
assistance during President Barack Obama’s visit to Dillingham in 2015, and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Henry contributed significantly towards integrating the Togiak National 
Wildlife Refuge office into the community through event participation, and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Henry has truly been a valued asset to the community of Dillingham and 
its residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council wishes to recognize Ms. Henry’s contribution to the community;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Dillingham City Council offers this 
commendation to Ms. Susanna Henry with sincere thanks for sharing her time, her 
dedication and her talent with the citizens of Dillingham and assuring that it continues to 
be a great place to live.    
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Dillingham City Council on October 3, 2019 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lori Goodell, City Clerk  

Page 7 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 8 of 98



Our Vision.  To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and 
growing economy.  We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals 
that assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Chris Napoli 
  Vacant 
Manager  Aksel Buholm 
Tod Larson Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Gregg Marxmiller 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:             September 27, 2019 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Tod Larson 
 
Subject: October 2019 City Manager Report 
 
 
Personnel – Welcome to our new employees and thank you to those that have served 
the City faithfully and are moving on to other positions/careers.   
 

New Employees:    None 
  
Resignations:  Braden Timurphy – Laborer 
    Chris Tucker – Laborer 
    Chris Taylor – Laborer 
    Dillon Chaney – Laborer  
      
Transfers:     None  
     
Position Vacancies:   Police Officer  
     
Seasonal:   None  

 
Harbor Property Cleanup and Sale – I wanted to thank Dagan Nelson, his crew, and all 
the City Staff involved in the cleanup of the property and all the associated work that went 
into the sale.  We have received many positive comments from community members.  We 
are still shooting to get more cleaned up prior to winter. 
 
Friends of the Landfill – The friends of the landfill spent around five hours working on 
the electronics and light bulbs/tubes cleanup.  It was a phenomenal effort and it looks so 
much better.  I really just want to publicly thank them for their efforts.  The comment I 
received from them was “We are just getting started.”  Great group of people. 
 
City Manager’s Corner on KDLG – We restarted this as a community information 
program to provide the latest information on some of the happenings around Dillingham.  
We taped a segment on September 23rd and you should be hearing it on KDLG.   
 

Page 9 of 98



Our Vision.  To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and 
growing economy.  We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals 
that assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 

School Bus Operations – The School Superintendent and I rode a school bus the 
morning of September 18th.  We wanted to get out and see the challenges school bus 
drivers face.  As you know there was a near tragic event this year.  We want to remain 
proactive in reminding people to keep this in the forefront of their minds. 
 
PSEA Negotiations – We conducted intensive negotiations with the Public Safety 
Employees Association.  As of the writing of my notes, we are close to having something 
to present to the City Council.  I asked Lori to put this on the agenda for discussion. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Tod Larson 

Page 10 of 98



FY
1

7
FY

1
8

FY
1

9
FY

2
0

FY
2

1
FY

2
2

FY
2

3
FY

2
4

FY
2

5
FY

2
6

FY
2

7
FY

2
8

FY
2

9
FY

3
0

FY
3

9
TO

TA
L

Sc
h

o
o

l B
o

n
d

 D
eb

t

9
9

.9
7

5
2

%
 o

f 
th

e 
b

o
n

d
 is

 e
lig

ib
ile

 f
o

r 
re

im
b

u
rs

em
en

t 
at

 3
5

%

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

6
9

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
7

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
6

8
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
7

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
7

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
7

7
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
8

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
8

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
8

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
9

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
9

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
1

,0
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
9

,8
4

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
  

In
te

re
st

2
5

4
,9

7
5

.5
6

  
4

2
1

,1
5

0
.0

0
   

   
3

7
8

,4
5

0
.0

0
   

   
3

5
0

,5
5

0
.0

0
   

   
3

2
1

,5
5

0
.0

0
   

   
2

9
1

,2
5

0
.0

0
   

   
2

5
5

,5
0

0
.0

0
   

   
2

1
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
1

7
0

,5
0

0
.0

0
   

   
1

2
4

,7
5

0
.0

0
   

   
7

6
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
2

5
,8

7
5

.0
0

   
   

  
2

,8
8

5
,0

5
0

.5
6

   
  

9
4

9
,9

7
5

.5
6

  
1

,1
4

6
,1

5
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

3
,4

5
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

0
,5

5
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

1
,5

5
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

6
,2

5
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

5
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

0
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

4
,7

5
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

6
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
1

,0
6

0
,8

7
5

.0
0

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
2

,7
3

0
,0

5
0

.5
6

   

St
at

e
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

3
4

.9
9

%
6

6
4

,8
1

7
.9

8
  

8
0

2
,1

0
6

.0
3

   
   

7
4

4
,2

3
0

.3
9

   
   

3
7

1
,1

0
0

.4
4

   
   

3
7

1
,4

5
0

.3
6

   
   

3
7

3
,0

9
4

.9
5

   
   

3
7

2
,8

3
2

.5
1

   
   

3
7

2
,3

0
7

.6
4

   
   

3
7

1
,0

8
2

.9
5

   
   

3
7

2
,5

7
0

.0
8

   
   

3
7

3
,1

8
2

.4
3

   
   

3
7

1
,2

1
4

.1
7

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

,4
5

4
,4

1
2

.7
3

   
  

C
it

y 
Ex

p
e

n
se

2
8

5
,1

5
7

.5
8

  
3

4
4

,0
4

3
.9

7
   

   
3

1
9

,2
1

9
.6

1
   

   
6

8
9

,4
4

9
.5

6
   

   
6

9
0

,0
9

9
.6

4
   

   
6

9
3

,1
5

5
.0

5
   

   
6

9
2

,6
6

7
.4

9
   

   
6

9
1

,6
9

2
.3

6
   

   
6

8
9

,4
1

7
.0

5
   

   
6

9
2

,1
7

9
.9

2
   

   
6

9
3

,3
1

7
.5

7
   

   
6

8
9

,6
6

0
.8

3
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
,2

7
5

,6
3

7
.8

3
   

  

La
ke

 R
o

a
d

 F
ir

e 
H

a
ll 

B
o

n
d

 D
eb

t

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

  
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
  

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

  
5

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

In
te

re
st

2
7

,6
7

2
.9

2
   

   
  

2
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

2
0

,7
5

0
.0

0
   

   
  

1
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

1
8

,2
5

0
.0

0
   

  
1

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
  

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

 
3

3
3

,4
2

2
.9

2
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4

2
,6

7
2

.9
2

   
   

  
4

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

5
,7

5
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

4
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
4

3
,2

5
0

.0
0

   
 

4
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

 
4

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
 

8
8

8
,4

2
2

.9
2

   
   

  

St
re

et
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
B

o
n

d
 D

eb
t

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

9
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
1

4
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
  

2
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

  
2

,9
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
  

In
te

re
st

1
4

5
,5

9
4

.4
4

   
   

1
4

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
3

6
,7

5
0

.0
0

   
   

1
3

1
,7

5
0

.0
0

   
   

1
2

6
,7

5
0

.0
0

   
   

1
2

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
1

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

1
0

3
,7

5
0

.0
0

   
   

9
7

,2
5

0
.0

0
   

  
9

0
,5

0
0

.0
0

   
  

1
1

,2
5

0
.0

0
   

  
1

,7
6

4
,5

9
4

.4
4

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2

3
5

,5
9

4
.4

4
   

   
2

3
6

,5
0

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
6

,7
5

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
1

,7
5

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
1

,7
5

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
3

,7
5

0
.0

0
   

   
2

3
2

,2
5

0
.0

0
  

2
3

5
,5

0
0

.0
0

  
2

3
6

,2
5

0
.0

0
  

4
,6

8
4

,5
9

4
.4

4
   

  

2
 2

0
1

7
 P

u
b

lic
 S

a
fe

ty
 F

o
rd

 In
te

rc
ep

to
r 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 F

Y
1

9

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ay
m

e
n

t
1

6
,4

3
7

.7
4

   
  

1
6

,4
3

7
.7

4
   

   
  

1
6

,4
3

7
.7

4
   

   
  

1
6

,4
3

7
.7

4
   

   
  

1
6

,4
3

7
.7

4
   

   
  

1
6

,4
3

7
.7

4
   

   
  

9
8

,6
2

6
.4

4
   

   
   

  

1
6

,4
3

7
.7

4
   

 
1

6
,4

3
7

.7
4

   
   

  
1

6
,4

3
7

.7
4

   
   

  
1

6
,4

3
7

.7
4

   
   

  
1

6
,4

3
7

.7
4

   
   

  
1

6
,4

3
7

.7
4

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
8

,6
2

6
.4

4
   

   
   

 

1
 2

0
1

9
 P

u
b

lic
 S

a
fe

ty
 F

o
rd

 In
te

rc
ep

to
r 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 F

Y
1

9

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

8
,6

7
8

.0
2

   
   

   
  

6
,5

7
1

.1
6

   
   

   
  

7
,0

4
4

.2
8

   
   

   
  

7
,5

5
1

.4
7

   
   

   
  

8
,0

9
5

.0
7

   
   

   
  

3
7

,9
4

0
.0

0
   

   
   

  

In
te

re
st

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2
,1

0
6

.8
6

   
   

   
  

1
,6

3
3

.7
4

   
   

   
  

1
,1

2
6

.5
5

   
   

   
  

5
8

2
.9

5
   

   
   

   
  

5
,4

5
0

.1
0

   
   

   
   

 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8

,6
7

8
.0

2
   

   
   

 
8

,6
7

8
.0

2
   

   
   

 
8

,6
7

8
.0

2
   

   
   

 
8

,6
7

8
.0

2
   

   
   

 
8

,6
7

8
.0

2
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
3

,3
9

0
.1

0
   

   
   

 

H
yl

a
b

 5
 C

ra
n

e 
Le

a
se

-R
en

ta
l A

g
re

em
en

t

Le
as

e
 P

ay
m

e
n

t
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
  

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

   
   

1
,3

3
1

,9
5

8
.4

0
   

  

1
3

3
,1

9
5

.8
4

  
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
1

3
3

,1
9

5
.8

4
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,3

3
1

,9
5

8
.4

0
   

  

A
D

EC
 L

o
a

n
(W

a
te

r,
 L

a
n

d
fi

ll,
 W

a
st

ew
a

te
r 

p
ro

je
ct

ed
)

Lo
an

 P
ay

m
e

n
t

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
  

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

  
1

,3
1

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
   

  
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
 

6
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

 
6

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

   
 

1
,3

1
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
   

  

To
ta

l D
e

b
t

4
3

4
,7

9
1

.1
6

  
4

9
3

,6
7

7
.5

5
   

   
4

7
7

,5
3

1
.2

1
   

   
1

,1
4

6
,0

2
8

.5
2

   
1

,1
9

9
,9

1
1

.2
4

   
1

,2
0

2
,2

1
6

.6
5

   
1

,1
7

9
,2

9
1

.3
5

   
1

,1
6

8
,6

3
8

.2
0

   
1

,1
6

5
,1

1
2

.8
9

   
1

,1
7

6
,3

7
5

.7
6

   
1

,0
4

2
,0

6
7

.5
7

   
1

,0
3

5
,9

1
0

.8
3

   
3

4
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
  

3
4

5
,5

0
0

.0
0

  
3

4
6

,2
5

0
.0

0
  

C
it

y 
o

f 
D

ill
in

gh
am

 

Fu
tu

re
 D

e
b

t 
Lo

ad

P
re

p
ar

e
d

 8
/1

9
/2

0
1

9



 1 

City of Dillingham 
House District 37 / Senate District S 

 

 

~ 9/27/19 ~ 
 

31st Alaska State Legislature ~ 1st Interim 
SEPTEMBER  2019  –  LEGISLATIVE REPORT 

 

Cliff Stone / City Lobbyist 
 
 

~ Alaska Senate District M seat still vacant ~ 
 

<><><><> 
 

On August 7th, a vacancy was left in Senate District M when Senator Chris Birch suddenly died from a 
heart attack.  When a vacancy occurs in the Alaska Legislature, state law requires the governor to appoint 
a qualified candidate to fill the seat within 30 days. The appointment is subject to confirmation by a 
majority of legislators in the same house and of the same political party as the person who left the 
vacancy. 
 
The governor had announced his appointment of current state representative Laddie Shaw to fill that 
vacancy on August 30th.  The governor did so after interviewing three candidates submitted to him from 
the Alaska Republican Party Districts 25 and 26. 
 
On September 19th, Representative Laddie Shaw did not receive the majority vote of approval from 
Senate Republicans required for confirmation to the seat.  The vote was six in favor and six opposed, thus 
turning down this appointment.  The governor now has 10 days to appoint another candidate for Senate 
Republicans to consider.  That announcement should have been made by the time you have this report for 
your next Council meeting.  I will let you know as soon as it is declared. 
 

<><><><> 
 

GOVERNOR'S CORNER   
http://gov.alaska.gov  

 

Handy phone numbers for Governor’s offices: Anchorage: 907-269-7450 and Juneau: 907-465-3500 
 
The Lt. Governor Kevin Meyer released a press release (19-002) on August 30, 2019 denying certification 
of the 19AKBE election initiative.  The proposed initiative was denied based upon its violation of the 
single-subject rule as outlined in AS 15.45.040.  According to a formal opinion issued by Attorney 
General Kevin Clarkson, the election initiative raised concern of violating the single-subject rule because 
it would enact three significant changes to democratic processes: establish an open primary, create a 
ranked-choice general election, and change campaign finance disclosure laws.  The initiative sponsors 
have 30 days to challenge the Lieutenant Governor’s certification decision. 
 
OMB Director Donna Arduin is out as the head of that division under the governor.  Dep. Director Laura 
Cramer will manage the operations of the OMB during this transition.  In the governor’s press release, 
Ms. Arduin has been offered a separate contract to be an advisor.  An acting director is expected to be 
announced in the near future. 
 

<><><><> 

Page 11 of 98



 2 

 

WEBSITES OF INTEREST 
 

Online Public Notices for Alaska   https://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/default.aspx  
 
2019 Legislators contact information   http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/whoswho.pdf   
 
2019 1st Session Staff contact list   http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/session_phone_list.pdf  
 
2019 1st House / Senate Committee list   http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/commlist.pdf  
 
Legislative Publications List   http://akleg.gov/publications.php  
 
Legislative Finance Division   http://www.legfin.akleg.gov   
View specifics for the Capital and Operating Budgets. 
 
Congressional Delegation websites (Current phone numbers will be listed on these sites) 
http://murkowski.senate.gov/public     www.sullivan.senate.gov      http://donyoung.house.gov 
 

<><><><> 
 

~ End Report ~ 
 

Enjoy your family and friends!  
~ Cliff 

Page 12 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Chris Napoli 
  Vacant 
Manager Aksel Buholm 
Tod Larson Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Gregg Marxmiller 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 23, 2019 
 
To: Tod Larson, City Manager 
 
From:  Lori Goodell, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report 
 
 
Regular City Election will be held Tuesday, October 1, 2019, for the purpose of electing 
council and school board seats.  Declaration of Candidacy ends on September 3.  Write-in 
candidate period starts Sept. 4 and ends Sept. 30.  Write-ins will not go on the ballot, nor 
can the election judges provide the names on Election Day. 
 
The following seats are up for election:  
Seat    (Declaration of Candidacy) Term 
City Council 
Seat A    Chris Napoli   3-year term ending in October 2022 
 
Seat B    Bill Rodawalt   3-year term ending in October 2022 
    Kaleb Westfall 
 
School Board 
Seat A    Emily Hulett   3-year term ending in October 2022 
    Heather Savo 
    Chris Napoli 
 
As always there is a place to write in a candidate for each open seat. To be counted as a 
write in a letter of intent must be filed with my office by 1:00 p.m. on September 30. I have 
received NO letters of intent for write-ins. 
 
Foreclosure: 
The period of redemption for the Judgment and Decree of Foreclosure of Real Property 
Tax Liens that was signed by Judge Reigh on February 11, 2019 is approaching the year 
mark.  We have issued a number of certificates of redemption.  The Finance Department 
continues to work hard towards a resolution with as many property owners as possible.   
 
The City Attorney is getting ready to file a new foreclosure action with the court.  This 
lawsuit is authorized in Resolution 2019, and is for delinquent taxes from the 2018 tax 

Page 13 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

period as well as other properties that have become delinquent since the 2017 action filed 
with the court.  
 
Training: 
I am attending the AAMC conference in Anchorage, November 17-20.  This conference 
offers up to date information regarding the latest issues faced by clerks today.  It also 
adds to my pursuit of acquiring the CMC designation.  BBEDC has graciously funded 
most of the expense for this training. 
 
Vacation: 
I will be out of state for the Thanksgiving holiday.  I will be out of the office 11/18 – 12/6.  
This includes the time I am out for the AAMC conference. 
 
Committees: 
Finance and Budget Committee Work on budget matters continues discussing sales tax, 
and CIP expenses. 
 
Code Review Committee The plastic bag ban issue was discussed, and a vendor 
informational letter will be generated.  Updates to DMC 4.20 are waiting for AML to 
complete work on this topic. 
 
Friends of the Landfill will meet on September 27.  The committee has designated the 
fourth Friday of every month as their regular meeting date. 
 
STANDING ITEM(S):  
Liquor & Marijuana License Renewals/Transfers/New Licenses. 
Bristol Bay Bud Company, LLC – retail marijuana store license renewal.  This item was 
reviewed on 9/12 by the Code Review Committee and is on the Oct. Council meeting 
agenda. 
 
 
Commission/Board Seats Vacant. 

 One open seat on the Senior Advisory Commission. No letter of interest received. 
 

 One open seat on the Library Advisory Board in September.  No letter of interest 
received.  
 

 Two open seats on the Friends of the Landfill Committee.  No letters of interest 
received. 
 

 
 

Clerk Note: 
DMC 2.090.050 Executive sessions. has been included in the packet for council 
members to have access to allowed subjects and verbiage associated with making 
motions. 

Page 14 of 98



Dillingham Municipal Code  

 

Page 1/1 

The Dillingham Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 19-04, passed August 1, 2019.  

 2.09.050 Executive sessions. 

A.    The following subjects may be discussed in an executive session, from which the public is excluded: 

1.    Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the 

government unit; 

2.    Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided the person may 

request a public discussion; 

3.    Matters which by law are required to be confidential. 

B.    The following shall be discussed in executive session when the best interests of the city so require: 

1.    Negotiations with labor organizations representing city employees; 

2.    Discussions of pending or threatened lawsuits in which the city has an interest. 

C.    If excepted subjects are to be discussed, the council may go into a closed or executive session by a vote of 

four members taken at a public meeting, at which session only those subjects shall be considered as mentioned in the 

motion for the executive session, and no ordinance, resolution or order shall be passed or voted upon or claim 

allowed at such session. (Ord. 77-6 § 2 (part), 1977; Ord. 84-8, 1984; Ord. 86-8 § 1, 1986.) 

Page 15 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 16 of 98



R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

:
B

u
d

g
et

 -
 F

Y
20

M
T

D
Y

T
D

P
er

ce
n

t
Y

T
D

IN
C

/(
D

E
C

)
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
 R

ev
en

u
es

G
en

er
al

 S
al

es
 T

ax
2,

70
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

40
6,

21
7

$ 
   

   
76

9,
48

6
$ 

   
   

  
28

%
45

7,
86

8
$ 

   
   

31
1,

61
8

$ 
   

   
A

lc
oh

ol
 S

al
es

 T
ax

29
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
38

,0
74

   
   

   
  

41
,9

09
   

   
   

   
 

14
%

6,
65

1
   

   
   

   
 

35
,2

58
   

   
   

  
T

ra
ns

ie
nt

 L
od

gi
ng

 S
al

es
 T

ax
95

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
,9

25
   

   
   

  
31

,6
37

   
   

   
   

 
33

%
19

,5
54

   
   

   
  

12
,0

83
   

   
   

  
G

am
in

g 
S

al
es

 T
ax

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

56
7

   
   

   
   

 
11

,6
08

   
   

   
   

 
15

%
5,

61
5

   
   

   
   

 
5,

99
4

   
   

   
   

 
T

ob
ac

co
 T

ax
22

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

56
,3

93
   

   
   

  
10

0,
19

0
   

   
   

  
46

%
18

,5
61

   
   

   
  

81
,6

29
   

   
   

  
T

ot
al

 S
al

es
 T

ax
3,

38
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

52
1,

17
6

   
   

   
95

4,
83

0
   

   
   

  
28

%
50

8,
24

8
   

   
   

44
6,

58
2

   
   

   

R
ea

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
T

ax
2,

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

(2
31

)
   

   
   

   
   

2,
11

7,
69

4
   

   
  

10
1%

2,
06

7,
98

0
   

   
49

,7
15

   
   

   
  

P
er

so
na

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
T

ax
 

53
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
(4

,4
20

)
   

   
   

   
51

6,
74

4
   

   
   

  
97

%
51

2,
63

2
   

   
   

4,
11

2
   

   
   

   
 

T
ot

al
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

T
ax

es
 

2,
63

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
(4

,6
51

)
   

   
   

   
2,

63
4,

43
8

   
   

  
10

0%
2,

58
0,

61
2

   
   

53
,8

27
   

   
   

  

T
el

ep
ho

ne
 G

ro
ss

 R
ec

ei
pt

s 
S

ta
te

 T
ax

65
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0%
(6

9,
62

5)
   

   
   

 
69

,6
25

   
   

   
  

R
aw

 F
is

h 
T

ax
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

S
ha

re
d 

F
is

he
rie

s
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ha
ri

ng
 

10
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0%
11

9,
90

3
   

   
   

(1
19

,9
03

)
   

   
  

P
ay

m
en

t i
n 

Li
eu

 o
f 

T
ax

es
 (

P
IL

T
)

45
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

6,
16

4
   

   
   

  
10

4%
45

9,
84

1
   

   
   

6,
32

3
   

   
   

   
 

S
ta

te
 J

ai
l C

on
tr

ac
t 

56
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

dm
in

 O
ve

rh
ea

d
19

5,
91

1
   

   
   

   
   

31
,8

80
   

   
   

  
31

,8
80

   
   

   
   

 
16

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
31

,8
80

   
   

   
  

P
E

R
S

 o
n 

B
eh

al
f

12
5,

26
7

   
   

   
   

   
15

,1
01

   
   

   
  

29
,9

16
   

   
   

   
 

24
%

32
,5

22
   

   
   

  
(2

,6
06

)
   

   
   

   
O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

s
46

6,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

31
,8

67
   

   
   

  
10

1,
44

9
   

   
   

  
22

%
79

,5
66

   
   

   
  

21
,8

83
   

   
   

  
T

ot
al

2,
34

6,
27

8
   

   
   

   
78

,8
48

   
   

   
  

62
9,

41
0

   
   

   
  

27
%

62
2,

20
8

   
   

   
7,

20
2

   
   

   
   

 
   

  T
o

ta
l

8,
35

6,
27

8
$ 

   
   

   
59

5,
37

3
$ 

   
   

4,
21

8,
67

8
$ 

   
  

50
%

3,
71

1,
06

7
$ 

   
50

7,
61

0
$ 

   
   

S
p

ec
ia

l R
ev

en
u

e 
F

u
n

d
s 

R
ev

en
u

es
 &

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s

W
at

er
 

21
6,

82
2

   
   

   
   

   
18

,1
26

   
   

   
  

39
,2

35
   

   
   

   
 

18
%

45
,8

05
   

   
   

  
(6

,5
70

)
   

   
   

   
S

ew
er

  
48

2,
01

9
   

   
   

   
   

31
,9

99
   

   
   

  
71

,6
58

   
   

   
   

 
15

%
11

7,
78

4
   

   
   

(4
6,

12
7)

   
   

   
 

La
nd

fil
l

66
2,

14
7

   
   

   
   

   
73

,6
85

   
   

   
  

10
3,

80
7

   
   

   
  

16
%

65
,2

69
   

   
   

  
38

,5
38

   
   

   
  

D
oc

k
77

1,
62

0
   

   
   

   
   

13
4,

99
6

   
   

   
13

8,
54

5
   

   
   

  
18

%
95

,5
12

   
   

   
  

43
,0

34
   

   
   

  
H

ar
bo

r
22

1,
55

8
   

   
   

   
   

27
,5

32
   

   
   

  
64

,4
83

   
   

   
   

 
29

%
36

,6
49

   
   

   
  

27
,8

34
   

   
   

  
A

ss
et

 F
or

fe
itu

re
 F

un
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,5

74
   

   
   

   
 

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,5
74

   
   

   
  

E
-9

11
 S

er
vi

ce
78

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
80

0
   

   
   

   
 

11
,4

74
   

   
   

   
 

15
%

15
,1

80
   

   
   

  
(3

,7
06

)
   

   
   

   
Li

br
ar

y 
G

ra
nt

s
84

,5
99

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

8%
19

,7
90

   
   

   
  

(1
2,

79
0)

   
   

   
 

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

(G
ra

nt
)

12
6,

45
9

   
   

   
   

   
43

,2
88

   
   

   
  

31
,2

76
   

   
   

   
 

25
%

31
,0

00
   

   
   

  
27

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
(N

on
-G

ra
nt

)
19

8,
10

7
   

   
   

   
   

21
,8

53
   

   
   

  
24

,6
26

   
   

   
   

 
12

%
7,

88
2

   
   

   
   

 
16

,7
43

   
   

   
  

   
  T

o
ta

l
2,

84
1,

33
1

$ 
   

   
   

36
4,

27
9

$ 
   

   
50

3,
67

8
$ 

   
   

  
18

%
43

4,
87

1
$ 

   
   

68
,8

07
$ 

   
   

  

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 F
u

n
d

s 
R

ev
en

u
e

M
ar

y 
C

ar
ls

on
 E

st
at

e 
P

er
m

an
en

t F
un

d
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
73

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

%
81

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
(8

1)
   

   
   

   
   

  
A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
R

es
er

ve
 F

un
d

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

,3
77

   
   

   
  

11
,3

77
   

   
   

   
 

19
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,3

77
   

   
   

  

C
it

y 
o

f 
D

ill
in

g
h

am
R

ev
en

u
es

 a
n

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
A

s 
o

f 
 

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

U
n

au
d

it
ed

 F
ig

u
re

s
U

n
A

u
d

it
ed

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
8

1 
of

 5

Page 17 of 98



C
it

y 
o

f 
D

ill
in

g
h

am
R

ev
en

u
es

 a
n

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
A

s 
o

f 
 

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

U
n

au
d

it
ed

 F
ig

u
re

s
U

n
A

u
d

it
ed

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
8

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

d
1,

06
0,

55
0

   
   

   
   

7,
44

2
   

   
   

   
 

7,
44

2
   

   
   

   
   

1%
8,

02
1

   
   

   
   

 
(5

79
)

   
   

   
   

   
71

40
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

s
29

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
(3

01
6)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

tr
ee

ts
 (

30
21

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

18
3

   
   

   
   

 
4,

18
3

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
P

la
nn

in
g 

(3
20

0)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

W
at

er
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (

30
22

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

81
1

   
   

   
   

 
3,

81
1

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

ew
er

 L
ag

oo
n 

O
ut

fa
ll 

(4
51

0)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

La
go

on
 A

er
ea

tio
n 

(4
51

1)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

O
th

er
 L

ift
 S

ta
tio

n 
(4

41
5)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
La

nd
fil

l N
ew

 C
el

l (
31

10
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
La

nd
fil

l G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 W
el

l (
31

20
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
B

in
gm

an
-H

ar
bo

r 
cl

ea
nu

p 
(2

11
4)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
(3

01
3)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
La

nd
fil

l C
lo

su
re

 F
un

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  T

o
ta

l
1,

41
4,

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

27
,1

07
$ 

   
   

  
27

,5
51

$ 
   

   
   

 
2%

8,
84

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,7

17
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
T

o
ta

l R
ev

en
u

es
 &

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

&
 P

ro
je

ct
s

12
,6

12
,1

59
$ 

   
   

 
98

6,
75

9
$ 

   
   

4,
74

9,
90

7
$ 

   
  

38
%

4,
15

4,
77

9
$ 

   
58

7,
13

5
$ 

   
   

 

2 
of

 5

Page 18 of 98



C
it

y 
o

f 
D

ill
in

g
h

am
R

ev
en

u
es

 a
n

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
A

s 
o

f 
 

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

U
n

au
d

it
ed

 F
ig

u
re

s
U

n
A

u
d

it
ed

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
8

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
:

B
u

d
g

et
 -

 F
Y

20
M

T
D

Y
T

D
P

er
ce

n
t

Y
T

D
IN

C
/(

D
E

C
)

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il

45
,3

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

08
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

82
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
19

%
9,

40
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
(5

81
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
C

ity
 C

le
rk

12
2,

83
4

   
   

   
   

   
8,

30
1

   
   

   
   

 
17

,2
66

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

%
17

,7
30

$ 
   

   
  

(4
64

)
   

   
   

   
   

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

26
9,

19
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,0

10
   

   
   

  
36

,5
20

   
   

   
   

 
14

%
38

,3
30

$ 
   

   
  

(1
,8

10
)

   
   

   
   

F
in

an
ce

66
0,

98
8

   
   

   
   

   
38

,0
28

   
   

   
  

93
,5

45
   

   
   

   
 

14
%

10
2,

74
4

$ 
   

   
(9

,1
99

)
   

   
   

   
Le

ga
l

70
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

32
2

   
   

   
   

 
5,

32
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
8%

4,
29

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
02

5
   

   
   

   
 

In
su

ra
nc

e
16

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

8,
08

1
   

   
   

   
 

35
,1

52
   

   
   

   
 

21
%

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
35

,0
58

   
   

   
  

N
on

-D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
95

,6
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
94

1
   

   
   

   
 

4,
30

5
   

   
   

   
   

5%
9,

50
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
(5

,2
01

)
   

   
   

   
P

la
nn

in
g

14
8,

14
9

   
   

   
   

   
5,

08
7

   
   

   
   

 
11

,8
08

   
   

   
   

 
8%

23
,6

57
$ 

   
   

  
(1

1,
84

9)
   

   
   

 
F

or
ec

lo
su

re
s

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

IT
12

0,
81

2
   

   
   

   
   

7,
38

1
   

   
   

   
 

3,
93

2
   

   
   

   
   

3%
13

,8
71

$ 
   

   
  

(9
,9

39
)

   
   

   
   

M
ee

tin
g 

H
al

l a
bo

ve
 F

ir
e 

S
ta

tio
n

2,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
%

23
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

67
   

   
   

   
   

   
P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

15
5,

01
9

   
   

   
   

   
10

,9
05

   
   

   
  

22
,2

60
   

   
   

   
 

14
%

21
,1

70
$ 

   
   

  
1,

09
0

   
   

   
   

 
D

is
pa

tc
h

53
5,

14
9

   
   

   
   

   
28

,0
77

   
   

   
  

60
,1

08
   

   
   

   
 

11
%

88
,0

52
$ 

   
   

  
(2

7,
94

5)
   

   
   

 
P

at
ro

l
88

0,
30

1
   

   
   

   
   

48
,4

18
   

   
   

  
10

3,
16

8
   

   
   

  
12

%
11

8,
34

5
$ 

   
   

(1
5,

17
7)

   
   

   
 

C
or

re
ct

io
ns

65
6,

95
5

   
   

   
   

   
39

,1
66

   
   

   
  

83
,2

64
   

   
   

   
 

13
%

93
,7

89
$ 

   
   

  
(1

0,
52

5)
   

   
   

 
D

M
V

46
,1

04
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

93
6

   
   

   
   

 
6,

34
4

   
   

   
   

   
14

%
6,

59
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
(2

50
)

   
   

   
   

   
A

ni
m

al
 C

on
tr

ol
 O

ff
ic

er
10

6,
66

4
   

   
   

   
   

6,
16

2
   

   
   

   
 

13
,3

83
   

   
   

   
 

13
%

14
,9

47
$ 

   
   

  
(1

,5
63

)
   

   
   

   
F

ir
e

27
9,

09
0

   
   

   
   

   
9,

47
8

   
   

   
   

 
31

,5
52

   
   

   
   

 
11

%
33

,5
46

$ 
   

   
  

(1
,9

93
)

   
   

   
   

P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

22
0,

13
4

   
   

   
   

   
11

,0
86

   
   

   
  

23
,4

73
   

   
   

   
 

11
%

22
,9

78
$ 

   
   

  
49

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

G
ro

un
ds

32
9,

35
4

   
   

   
   

   
14

,9
16

   
   

   
  

32
,7

19
   

   
   

   
 

10
%

35
,0

62
$ 

   
   

  
(2

,3
43

)
   

   
   

   
S

ho
p

35
0,

93
6

   
   

   
   

   
14

,3
83

   
   

   
  

29
,0

63
   

   
   

   
 

8%
52

,4
91

$ 
   

   
  

(2
3,

42
8)

   
   

   
 

S
tr

ee
t

36
8,

52
9

   
   

   
   

   
11

,3
24

   
   

   
  

26
,7

71
   

   
   

   
 

7%
24

,7
23

$ 
   

   
  

2,
04

8
   

   
   

   
 

Li
br

ar
y

11
7,

68
5

   
   

   
   

   
7,

91
9

   
   

   
   

 
19

,0
32

   
   

   
   

 
16

%
16

,7
46

$ 
   

   
  

2,
28

6
   

   
   

   
 

C
ity

 S
ch

oo
l

1,
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

5,
00

0
   

   
   

  
25

%
32

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 to

 O
th

er
 F

un
ds

1,
51

8,
29

9
   

   
   

   
79

,0
46

   
   

   
  

79
,0

46
$ 

   
   

   
 

5%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

79
,0

46
   

   
   

  
T

o
ta

l
8,

57
5,

01
8

$ 
   

   
   

37
9,

27
8

$ 
   

   
1,

07
2,

15
2

$ 
   

  
13

%
1,

07
3,

30
4

$ 
   

(1
,1

52
)

$ 
   

   
   

S
p

ec
ia

l R
ev

en
u

e 
F

u
n

d
s 

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

W
at

er
21

6,
82

2
   

   
   

   
   

16
,2

09
   

   
   

  
33

,7
57

   
   

   
   

 
16

%
30

,7
35

$ 
   

   
  

3,
02

1
   

   
   

   
 

S
ew

er
37

0,
18

5
   

   
   

   
   

19
,7

91
   

   
   

  
36

,2
89

   
   

   
   

 
10

%
12

,9
10

$ 
   

   
  

23
,3

79
   

   
   

  
La

nd
fil

l
66

2,
14

7
   

   
   

   
   

36
,3

21
   

   
   

  
10

3,
80

7
   

   
   

  
16

%
25

8,
73

9
$ 

   
   

(1
54

,9
32

)
   

   
  

D
oc

k
66

6,
25

4
   

   
   

   
   

49
,1

93
   

   
   

  
92

,1
51

   
   

   
   

 
14

%
95

,5
12

$ 
   

   
  

(3
,3

61
)

   
   

   
   

H
ar

bo
r

22
0,

55
8

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

62
,8

59
$ 

   
   

   
 

29
%

54
,7

79
$ 

   
   

  
8,

08
0

   
   

   
   

 
A

ss
et

 F
or

fe
itu

re
 F

un
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

E
-9

11
 S

er
vi

ce
57

,6
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Li

br
ar

y 
G

ra
nt

s
84

,5
99

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
29

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

2%
15

,0
88

$ 
   

   
  

(1
3,

79
4)

   
   

   
 

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

(G
ra

nt
)

12
6,

45
9

   
   

   
   

   
8,

41
4

   
   

   
   

 
15

,2
54

   
   

   
   

 
12

%
18

,4
72

   
   

   
  

(3
,2

19
)

   
   

   
   

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
r 

(N
on

-G
ra

nt
)

19
1,

32
9

   
   

   
   

   
13

,3
97

   
   

   
  

26
,1

49
   

   
   

   
 

14
%

17
,0

22
   

   
   

  
9,

12
7

   
   

   
   

 
C

IP
29

1,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
o

ta
l

2,
88

7,
15

3
$ 

   
   

   
14

3,
80

3
$ 

   
   

37
1,

56
0

$ 
   

   
  

13
%

50
3,

25
8

$ 
   

   
(1

31
,6

98
)

$ 
   

  

3 
of

 5

Page 19 of 98



C
it

y 
o

f 
D

ill
in

g
h

am
R

ev
en

u
es

 a
n

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
A

s 
o

f 
 

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

U
n

au
d

it
ed

 F
ig

u
re

s
U

n
A

u
d

it
ed

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
8

11
,4

62
,1

71
   

   
   

 
52

3,
08

1
   

   
   

1,
44

3,
71

3
   

   
  

13
%

1,
57

6,
56

3
   

   

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 F
u

n
d

s 
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
B

u
d

g
et

 -
 F

Y
20

M
T

D
Y

T
D

P
er

ce
n

t
Y

T
D

IN
C

/(
D

E
C

)
M

ar
y 

C
ar

ls
on

 E
st

at
e 

P
er

m
an

en
t F

un
d

5,
54

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6%
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

25
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

A
m

bu
la

nc
e 

R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
,3

77
   

   
   

  
11

,3
77

$ 
   

   
   

 
19

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

11
,3

77
   

   
   

  
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 F

un
d

1,
06

0,
55

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

71
40

 C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
je

ct
s

P
ub

lic
 S

af
et

y 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

(3
01

6)
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

tr
ee

ts
 (

30
21

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

18
3

   
   

   
   

 
4,

18
3

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
P

la
nn

in
g 

(3
20

0)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

W
at

er
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (

30
22

)
34

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
79

6
   

   
   

   
 

3,
81

1
   

   
   

   
   

11
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

S
ew

er
 L

ag
oo

n 
O

ut
fa

ll 
(4

51
0)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
La

go
on

 A
er

at
io

n 
(4

51
1)

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
O

th
er

 L
ift

 S
ta

tio
n 

(4
41

5)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

La
nd

fil
l N

ew
 C

el
l (

31
10

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
2,

14
5

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
La

nd
fil

l G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 W
el

l (
31

20
)

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
B

in
gm

an
-H

ar
bo

r 
cl

ea
nu

p 
(2

11
4)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
,0

09
   

   
   

  
29

,8
86

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
La

nd
fil

l C
lo

su
re

 F
un

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

T
o

ta
l

1,
26

0,
09

0
$ 

   
   

   
30

,5
29

$ 
   

   
  

49
,5

61
$ 

   
   

   
 

4%
17

2,
19

3
$ 

   
   

11
,6

33
$ 

   
   

  
   

  T
o

ta
l A

ll 
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
12

,7
22

,2
61

$ 
   

   
 

55
3,

61
1

$ 
   

   
1,

49
3,

27
3

$ 
   

  
12

%
1,

74
8,

75
6

$ 
   

(1
21

,2
17

)
$ 

   
  

R
ev

en
u

es
 O

ve
r 

(U
n

d
er

) 
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
(1

10
,1

02
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
43

3,
14

8
$ 

   
   

3,
25

6,
63

3
$ 

   
  

2,
40

6,
02

3
$ 

   
70

8,
35

2
$ 

   
   

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

s 
R

ev
en

u
es

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

M
T

D
Y

T
D

P
er

ce
n

t
Y

T
D

IN
C

/(
D

E
C

)
B

on
d S

tr
ee

ts
 (

71
31

)
23

8,
59

4
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
F

ir
eH

al
l (

71
32

)
42

,6
73

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  T
o

ta
l

28
1,

26
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

s 
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
M

T
D

Y
T

D
P

er
ce

n
t

Y
T

D
IN

C
/(

D
E

C
)

B
on

d S
tr

ee
ts

 (
71

31
)

39
3,

59
4

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

`
F

ir
eH

al
l (

71
32

)
44

,8
73

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
   

   
   

   
   

   
41

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  T

o
ta

l
43

8,
46

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

G
ra

n
t 

F
u

n
d

s 
R

ev
en

u
es

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

M
T

D
Y

T
D

P
er

ce
n

t
Y

T
D

IN
C

/(
D

E
C

)
G

ra
nt

s
A

N
T

H
C

-L
ag

oo
n 

(3
00

9)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
4,

14
1)

   
   

   
 

S
ta

te
 M

M
G

 2
83

08
-W

at
er

 Im
p 

(4
42

4)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

,0
00

   
   

   
  

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

4,
01

0)
   

   
   

 
S

ou
th

er
n 

R
eg

io
n 

E
M

S
 (

47
21

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
36

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
B

B
E

D
C

 In
te

rn
 P

ro
gr

am
 (

59
14

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4 
of

 5

Page 20 of 98



C
it

y 
o

f 
D

ill
in

g
h

am
R

ev
en

u
es

 a
n

d
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
A

s 
o

f 
 

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

U
n

au
d

it
ed

 F
ig

u
re

s
U

n
A

u
d

it
ed

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
9

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1,
 2

01
8

B
B

E
D

C
 T

ra
in

in
g 

R
ei

m
b 

(5
91

5)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
44

8
   

   
   

   
 

D
en

al
i C

om
m

is
si

on
-S

ew
er

 R
el

oc
at

e 
(5

94
5)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
F

ir
eH

al
l (

71
32

)
42

,6
73

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  T
o

ta
l

42
,6

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
13

,3
60

$ 
   

   
  

36
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(5
5,

70
3)

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

G
ra

n
t 

F
u

n
d

s 
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
M

T
D

Y
T

D
P

er
ce

n
t

Y
T

D
IN

C
/(

D
E

C
)

G
ra

nt
s

A
N

T
H

C
-L

ag
oo

n 
(3

00
9)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
31

79
S

ta
te

 M
M

G
 2

83
08

-W
at

er
 Im

p 
(4

42
4)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
19

0
   

   
   

   
 

8,
89

2
   

   
   

   
   

11
,9

00
   

   
   

  
S

ou
th

er
n 

R
eg

io
n 

E
M

S
 (

47
21

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

B
B

E
D

C
 In

te
rn

 P
ro

gr
am

 (
59

14
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,9

25
   

   
   

  
22

,7
35

   
   

   
   

 
34

,6
16

   
   

   
  

B
B

E
D

C
 T

ra
in

in
g 

R
ei

m
b 

(5
91

5)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
en

al
i C

om
m

is
si

on
-S

ew
er

 R
el

oc
at

e 
(5

94
5)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,8

94
   

   
   

   
 

F
ir

eH
al

l (
71

32
)

44
,8

73
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  T
o

ta
l

44
,8

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
15

,1
15

$ 
   

   
  

48
,5

20
$ 

   
   

   
 

49
,6

95
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5 
of

 5

Page 21 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 22 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Chris Napoli 
  Vacant 
Manager Aksel Buholm 
Tod Larson Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Gregg Marxmiller 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: 9/25/19 
 
To: Tod Larson, City Manager 
 
From:  Braden Tinker (Fire Coordinator) 
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report 
 
 
EMS Calls- 29 
Bleeding 4 13.79% 
Medical Transport 4 13.79% 
MVC- Motor Vehicle Crash 4 13.79% 
Abdominal Pain/Problems 2 6.90% 
Assault 2 6.90% 
Breathing Problem 2 6.90% 
Chest Pain (Non-Traumatic) 2 6.90% 
Overdose/Poisoning/Ingestion 2 6.90% 
 Refuse to Transport 1 3.45% 
Convulsions/Seizure 1 3.45% 
Nausea/Vomiting 1 3.45% 
Traffic/Transportation Incident 1 3.45% 
Unknown Problem/Person Down 1 3.45% 
Unresponsive 1 3.45% 
Weakness/Lethargic 1 3.45% 
  Total:  29  

 
 

Fire Calls-2   5.3 man hours 

 Senior Center, Sprinkler alarm 
 Senior Center, Sprinkler alarm 
 K-Camp, abandoned trailer fire 

 
 

  

Page 23 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

On-Going Projects 

 Pump Testing. 
 Communication (portable VHF`s) troubleshooting. We have a communications 

problem now (dead spots) throughout Dillingham. We are trying to figure this out 
now.(UPDATE, the radio guy will be coming in to work on it, date TBD)  

 EMT-1 Bridge class in Anchorage, 1 member going. 
 Fire Department Accreditation for teaching and instructing fire classes here in 

Dillingham.  
 Mission Statement for the Fire Department. 
 Looking for an instructor to come to Dillingham so we can get Fire Service 

Instruction certified.  
 EMT-3 Class, looking at going to Anchorage for the class (date TBD) will inform as 

soon as we get the dates. 
 Fire Prevention week with the Schools. 
 Fire and EMS training is back in full swing. 
 EMS Symposium – 5 members attending. 
 Alaska Firefighters Conference – 1 attending. 
 EMT-2 Recertification. 

Page 24 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and 
growing economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common 
goals that assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  
DILLINGHAM 

 
 

HMAM 

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Chris Napoli 
  Vacant 
Manager Aksel Buholm 
Tod Larson Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Gregg Marxmiller 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 24, 2019 
 
To: Tod Larson, City Manager 
 
From:  Sonja Marx, Librarian 
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report for September 
 
 
It’s been back to school for most of our young patrons who frequented the library during 
the summer.  We see many of the older students visit the library during their lunch time 
and after school.  The Dillingham Middle/High School continues to use the Dillingham 
Public Library as their School Library as outlined in our Consortium Library Agreement.  
Our School Librarian, Georgette Baumgartner, has been working with the teachers and 
staff to let them know she is available Monday through Thursday from 10 am to 3 pm at 
the library.  She is also flexible if they need to come outside those hours for classes. 
 
Story hour for our younger age group (usually 0-5 years old) continues strong every 
Wednesday starting at 10:30 am.  A different volunteer has been assigned one week 
out of the month to lead this event.  We are so thankful to those in our community who 
have committed themselves to this important task of early literacy.  Parents and 
caregivers bring their young children to hear/see stories that are read to them, sing 
songs, participate in a craft, and enjoy a snack.  It’s been a lot of fun for all.  We are 
glad we can introduce our young children and families to the importance of a library.  
 
The Friends Of the Dillingham Library (FOL, not Friends of the Landfill ) have a 
meeting scheduled for Saturday, September 28th at 10 am at the library as they discuss 
their upcoming author / book signing event and other business.  They are still looking for 
new board members and others to join the FOL. 
 
The Library Advisory Board met September 24th.  The Dillingham City School District 
appointed Ayse Haxton to Seat F as the School Rep.  Both Seat B (Amy Ruby) and seat 
D (Lee Ann Andrew) were each reinstated for another 3 year term.  Seat A is vacant 
with the resent resignation of Conor Downey.  We appreciate Conor’s many years of 
service on the LAB as vice-chair and most recently chair.  The next LAB meeting is 
scheduled in October with a Work Session included.  We hope to have the vacant seat 
filled by then.  New offices for LAB members were voted on and in place at this meeting. 
 

Page 25 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and 
growing economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common 
goals that assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

 

 

 

Library Stat report August 26th - September 21st, 2019: 

Patron Visits:  1,533   Computer Use:  251   Wireless Use:  472   Story Hour:  36   
Other Visits (including Classes):  90   Museum Use:  99 

            Movies Shown:  3   AWE Station Use:  34   Volunteer Hours Logged:  6.75 
 

Library Advisory Board meeting 5:30 pm Tuesday, October 15th at the Library 
 

Library will be closed Monday, October 14th for Indigenous Peoples Day 
 

Page 26 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Chris Napoli 
  Vacant 
Manager Aksel Buholm 
Tod Larson Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Gregg Marxmiller 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 24, 2019 
 
To: Tod Larson, City Manager 
 
From:  Cynthia Rogers, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report 
 
 

Planning Commission 

The next meeting is scheduled for September 25 at 5:30 pm.  The Commission is expected to hold a 
Public Hearing for a Replat and Preliminary Plat. 
 

Permitting 

 Land Use Permits – One application has been processed. 
 Burial Permits – One permit has been processed. 

 

Capital Projects 
Please see the attached FY19 Capital Improvement Project Priorities Progress Update. 
 
Dillingham Downtown Streets Rehabilitation 
STP-0001 (335)/57180 
The Planning Department has been in regular contact with Aaron Hughes, P.E., Project Manager for 
the Dillingham Downtown Streets project.  I have the following update: 
 
Expected Timeline 

 September 11, 2:00 PM – Extended Bid deadline 
 October/November – Contract signed; NTP issued  
 TBD – Contractor will begin mobilization; Potential demolition of Dillingham Hotel and use of 

site for constructions staging 
 
The apparent low bidder was JJC at $8,339,331.50.  QAP came in at $9.9M and Knik was at $12.45M.  
We look forward to working with DOT&PF and JJC on this project. 
 
Requests for Proposal   

 RFP 2019-08 Furnish Petroleum & Propane Fuels FY20, Bids due October 17 @ 4:00 PM. 
 

Grants 
A grant application for the Wells Fargo Outdoor Lighting Retrofit/Village Energy Efficiency Program 
was submitted on September 20.  The grant provides funding for the replacement/retrofit of exterior 
lighting to LED technology.  If the City is awarded the $50,000 grant, it will enable us to replace 8 street 
lights and 49 other exterior lights.  With a month of electrical expenses for the City averaging over 
$20,000, we believe this award will provide significant cost savings with conversion to LED technology.  
One of the last energy efficiency projects completed at the City was in 2012, when high efficiency 
heating systems were installed in a number of City buildings. 

Page 27 of 98



City of Dillingham – FY19 CIP Priorities, Progress Update September 2019  Page 1 of 5 

 

   
 
 

FY19 Capital Improvement Project Priorities 
Progress Update September 2019 

 
 
*Special Project – Bingman Clean-Up     $300,000 (estimate) 
 
We have made significant progress at the Bingman site since the last report.  A surplus sale was 
organized and took place on September 13-14.  Sealed bids were accepted and a total of 86 
bidders participated.  The City realized $20,794.57 in revenue from the surplus sale.  A number 
of items did not sell, however, parcels of these items may be sold at a later date TBD, using the 
Bingman Surplus Sale page on the City website.  We received many positive comments about 
the sale and availability of information online.   
 
In total, 28 flatbed loads of garbage were hauled to the landfill by the Bingman crew over the 
summer.  Public Works hauled another 16 dump truck loads of garbage to the landfill.  Another 
8-10 dump truck loads of garbage remain around the Thor.  This does not include the debris piles!  
The Bingman crew will conclude their work at the end of September.  A special thank you goes 
out to them:  Dagen Nelson, Chris Tucker, Braden Timurphy, Dillon Chaney, and Chris Taylor.  
These gentlemen accomplished a great deal with very few resources.  If you see them in the 
community, please thank them for their work! 
 
After evaluation of the ESA Phase I, the City has determined a hazardous materials consultant 
may be needed to provide on-going advice.  We intend to apply for EPA Brownfields funding this 
fall to assist with the remediation needed to the contaminated site.  In addition, the RFP has been 
put on hold in favor of requesting proposals for an excavator and side dump to facilitate further 
debris removal.  Quotes are currently being sought.  Contracting may begin on some portions of 
the property beginning in October.  The Port Director will be working on impounding the boats on 
site to allow their sale after a specified period of time. 
 
Construction:  $300,000 (estimate) 

 Funding established by Council as the insurance settlement from fire. 
 
Project Timeline: 

 September 21, All Surplus Items Picked Up 
 TBD, RFP Released; NOI Issued; Contract Signed, NTP Issued; Project close out 

Page 28 of 98



City of Dillingham – FY19 CIP Priorities, Progress Update September 2019  Page 2 of 5 

*Special Project – Wastewater Treatment Relocation Study  $211,071 (estimate) 
 
In March, CRW Engineering was awarded a one year contract for Engineering Services, AM 
2019-01. In April, the Denali Commission awarded the City of Dillingham $171,900 for 
Wastewater Treatment Lagoon Erosion Mitigation Study.  A fee proposal to prepare the 
Wastewater Treatment Relocation Study was submitted by CRW Engineering in May for 
$211,071. The difference of $39,171 has been appropriated in the FY20 budget.  Approximately 
20% of the budget has been expended to date.   
 
Project Timeline: 

 Early July – Site Visit 
 Mid-July – Trip Report 
 Mid-September – Draft Report 
 Late-September – Public Meeting 
 Two Weeks Post – Draft Final Report 
 Two Weeks Post – Final Report 

 
 
#1 – Wastewater System Upgrades, Aeration    $739,891 (estimate) 
 
Design:  $89,891 (estimate) 

 Bristol Engineering has been contracted to complete the design for this project.   
 ANTHC funding has been used for the design expenses. 

 
Construction:  $650,000 (estimate) 

 City to develop RFP. 
 ADEC SRF Loan Questionnaire submitted August 31, 2018; AK Clean Water Fund, Point 

Source Project Priority, Q3 prioritized #3. 
 ADEC SRF Loan Application in progress for $650,000. 
 SFY20 Q2 Project Priority List indicates a potential subsidy of $335,000. 
 Funding alternative is USDA Water and Waste Disposal Loan and Grant Program. 

 
Project Timeline: 

 January 22, 65% Design 
 March 22, 95% Design & ADEC review & permission to construct 
 April 10, DEC approval to construct received 
 May 3, 100% Design 
 TBD RFP Release, RFP scoring, evaluation, and recommendation for contract 
 TBD, Construction begins; Project close out 

 
 
#2 – Public Safety Server Room Fire Protection    $67,000 (estimate) 
 
Proceeding with blower door test.  Results will determine scheduling for system certification. 
 
Construction:  $67,000 (estimate) 

 RFP awarded to Wolverine Supply, Inc. 
 E-911 Grant funding will be used for this project. 

 
Project Timeline: 

 December, 2018 Installation of Clean Agent System 
 August, 2019 Air Sealing of Server Room 
 September, GNW Fire Services air sealing and system certification; project close out 

 
 

Page 29 of 98



City of Dillingham – FY19 CIP Priorities, Progress Update September 2019  Page 3 of 5 

#3 – Landfill Groundwater Monitoring Wells    $349,373 (estimate) 
 
Design:  $23,202 (estimate) 

 Bristol Engineering has been contracted to complete the design for this project.   
 City funding will be used for the design costs. 
 Cost overrun of $5,404.00 due to project delay (originally $17,798) 

 
Construction:  $161,928 (estimate) 

 ADEC SRF Loan Questionnaire submitted August 31, 2018; AK Clean Water Fund, Non-
Point Source Project Priority, Q3 prioritized #2. 

 ADEC SRF Loan Re-Application in progress for $366,897.03 (to reflect cost overrun). 
 Funding alternative is USDA Water and Waste Disposal Loan and Grant Program. 
 RFP was developed by Bristol Engineering. 
 Denali Drilling was only bidder for the project. 
 Cost overrun of $29,918.03 due to project delay (originally $132,010). 

 
Additional Project Costs:  $218,542 (estimate) 

 Bristol Engineering has been contracted for these services at $199,565. 
o Administration, $298.00 
o Construction Oversight, Sampling and Reporting, $199,267.00 

 Cost Overruns due to project delay: 
o Bristol Engineering (additional sampling for spring), $18,977.00 

 
Project Timeline: 

 October, 2018, Project Manual/Permit Set 
 November, 2018, ADEC review and approval to construct 
 January, RFP Release 
 February, RFP scoring, evaluation, and recommendation for contract 
 March, Contract awarded 
 April, On-site evaluation determined construction should be delayed until fall 
 November 2019-February 2020, Construction NTP TBD 
 April 1, 2020, Project close out 

 
 
#4 – Water System Improvements, Downtown Streets Support  $3.68M (estimate) 
 
Determining status of Kanakanak Road project section due to DOT&PF requirements and 
limitations. 
 
Design:  $224,715 (estimate) 

 CRW Engineering Group LLC has been contracted to complete the design for this project.  
Additionally, CRW is expected to handle ROW, easement, ADEC permitting, temporary 
construction permits, and construction administration for the City. 

 City funding will be used for 30% of the design costs; MMG 28308 will be used for 70% of 
the design costs. 

 
Construction, Phase I (DOT Project Footprint & Downtown Core):  $1,661,293 (estimate) 

 CRW to develop RFP. 
 ADEC SRF Loan Questionnaire submitted November 30, 2018; AK Clean Water Fund, 

Point Source Project Priority, Q3 prioritized #17. 
 MMG 28308 will provide 70% up to approximately $1.4M total cost, with 30% matching. 
 ADEC SRF Loan Application for $600,000 submitted 4/10/19, was approved on 8/27/19. 
 Funding alternative is USDA Water and Waste Disposal Loan and Grant Program. 

Page 30 of 98



City of Dillingham – FY19 CIP Priorities, Progress Update September 2019  Page 4 of 5 

 Expected URSA billing (DOT Project Footprint) is estimated at $411,808.32.  This number 
may change based on the DOT&PF winning bid. 

 Apparent Low Bidder (Downtown Core):  JJC Enterprises, $1,622,734. 
 

Construction, Phase II:  TBD 
 
Construction, Phase III:  TBD 
 
Project Timeline: 

 January 9, 75% Design (All Phases) 
 February 11, 100% Design for Phase I (DOT Footprint) 
 February 27, 100% Design (All Phases) 
 TBD, ADEC review and approval to construct 
 August, RFP Release; RFP scoring, evaluation, and recommendation for contract 
 September, Contract awarded; Construction begins TBD 
 May 2020, Phase I Project close out 

 
 

#5 – Lake Road Fire Hall Renovation     $589,200 (estimate) 
 
LCG Lantech’s has provided a proposal in the amount of $18,295.42 for additional project scoping 
(heating system and flooring changes), including updated design drawings, specifications, and 
engineers cost estimate.  This additional cost is being considered before determining next steps. 
 
Design: 

 LCG Lantech Inc. and RSA Engineering, Inc. have provided 100% design and 
specifications for this project.   
 

Construction:  $560,000.00 (estimate) 
 City of Dillingham, GO Bond  
 Funding alternative is USDA Community Facilities Loan and Grant Program. 
 RFP to be developed by Bristol Engineering. 

 
Additional Project Costs:  $29,200 (estimate) 

 LCG Lantech, Inc. will be contracted for these services. 
 City personnel may handle some tasks, others will be assigned to LCG Lantech via Task 

Orders, on an as needed basis. 
 Permitting, Bid Assistance, and Construction Administration, $12,000, T&M, NTE fee. 
 Project Inspection, Contract Administration, $17,200, T&M, NTE fee. 

 
Project Timeline: 

 March-June, Fire Marshall Plan Review Bureau Review 
 TBD, RFP Release 
 TBD, RFP scoring, evaluation, and recommendation for contract 
 TBD, Permitting finalized; Contract awarded 
 TBD, Construction begins 
 TBD, Project close out 

 
 
  

Page 31 of 98



City of Dillingham – FY19 CIP Priorities, Progress Update September 2019  Page 5 of 5 

#6 – Harbor Float Replacement             $5.2M (estimate) 
 
Design: 

 PND Engineers, Inc. has provided 75% design for this project.   
 

Construction:  $5.2M (estimate) 
 The City is currently exploring funding options through federal appropriations. 
 Funding alternatives are AKDOT&PF Harbor Facility Grant Program and USDA Public 

Works and Economic Development Facilities Program (Grants). 
 City to develop RFP. 

 
Project Timeline: 

 TBD pending funding 
 
 
#7 – D Street & Seward Street Rehabilitation Project   $3.11M (estimate) 
 
Design:  $154,329 (estimate) 

 PND Engineering, Inc. has been contracted to complete the design for this project.   
 

Construction:  $2.96M (estimate) 
 City of Dillingham, GO Bond  
 Funding alternative is USDA Community Facilities Loan and Grant Program. 
 RFP to be developed by PND. 
 Apparent Low Bidder:  JJC Enterprises, $2,494,737 

 
Project Timeline: 

 February 22, 65% design 
 April 30, 95% design, specifications and cost estimate 
 June, RFP Release, bid deadline August 15 
 August, RFP scoring, evaluation, and recommendation for contract 
 September, Permitting finalized; Contract awarded 
 April 2020, Construction NTP issued 
 August 2020, Project close out 

Page 32 of 98



 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Chris Napoli 
  Vacant 
Manager Aksel Buholm 
Tod Larson Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Gregg Marxmiller 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: 9-24-19 
 
To: Tod Larson, City Manager 
 
From:  Chief Dan Pasquariello 
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report 
 
 

Reporting period 8-25-19 to 9-24-19 
Dispatch: 
  

 340      Calls for service dispatched 
 84%     Dispatched to Dillingham Police 
   4%     Dispatched to Animal Control 
   4%     Dispatched to Fire/EMS 
   8%     Dispatched to Alaska State Troopers  

 
Corrections:  
 

   32      Total Inmates held at jail  
   17      Title 47 Protective custodies 

 
Reason for being incarcerated: 

 
Violation release conditions 7 
Assault   6 
Warrant arrests 5 
Disorderly Conduct 4 
DUI   3 
Burglary   2 
Criminal Mischief 1 
Serve time/court remand 4 
 
Patrol: 
 

 286     Calls for service 
   20     Persons arrested by DPD 
   17     Title 47/Protective custody by DPD   
   10     Citations issued   
   37       Incident reports by DPD 

Page 33 of 98



 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 

Approximately 1 out of 10 calls for police service require an incident report to be completed by officers.  A partial breakdown of our 
incident reports is as follows: 

 
Violation release/probation conditions 7 
Assault/Disorderly Conduct      5 
Thefts/Robbery    5 
Traffic offenses  5 
Sex offenses        4 
DUI        3 
Drug offenses       2 
Burglary        1 
Motor vehicle accidents  1 
Arson     1 
Suicide threat   1 
Criminal Mischief      1 
Trespass        1 
 
 
Animal Control: 
 

     8    Dogs impounded 
     5    Dogs returned to owners 
     2    Dogs adopted out 
     1    compassionate euthanasia 
     3    Dead dog removals 
   16   Rabies/parvo shots given 

 

 

DMV: 
     

    62    Driver’s licenses/IDs 
    52    Titles/registrations 
    18    Boat registrations 
    10    CDLs 
      5    Road tests 
      9    written tests 

 

Page 34 of 98



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Chris Napoli 
  Vacant 
Manager Aksel Buholm 
Tod Larson Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Gregg Marxmiller 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: September 23, 2019 
 
To: Tod Larson, City Manager 
 
From:  Ida Noonkesser, Director 
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report 
 
 
During the month of August, the Senior Center served 280 congregate meals to 39 
individuals, 152 home delivered meals to 8 individuals, gave 176 assisted rides to 11 
individuals and 150 unassisted rides to 21 individuals. 
 
We had three new renter in the month of August.   
 
We were able to hire Hugh Backford as a cook for the Senior Center. He has been great 
as an addition to the center. He has been enjoying cooking for the elders. 
 
Paige from BBAHC Behavioral Health has been doing activities including bingo for the 
elders. 
 
Peter Pan donated frozen foods, fresh veggies, and fruit, and few dry goods and Icicle 
Seafoods also donated dry goods.  These donations are worth thousands of dollars and 
save our food budget each fall. I‘ve sent out a thank you letters to them. This help for 
the Senior Center with food is one of the ways we have been able to keep our services 
going in times with smaller budgets. Items we are not able to use, we donated to 
BBNA’s Food Bank. We have also worked with them in the past.  
 
Kasten Wallona, our BBEDC Intern, completed his internship on August 30th.  We sure 
miss his hard work. 
 
 
Next Advisory Board Meeting October 9, 2019 
 

Page 35 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 36 of 98



Page 37 of 98



Page 38 of 98



Page 39 of 98



Page 40 of 98



 

City of Dillingham  Ordinance No. 2019-05 
Page 1 of 2 

NON-CODE ORDINANCE  Introduced Ord. No. 2019-05: October 3, 2019 
Public Hearing Scheduled: November 7, 2019 

Adopted: 
  

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-05 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL MODIFYING THE LAND USE 
RESTRICTION ON A PORTION OF BLOCK 5, U.S. SURVEY 2732, DILLINGHAM 
TOWNSITE 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 98-14 authorized the disposal of a portion of Block 5, U.S. Survey 2732 
(“the Property”) to the Curyung Tribal Council (“Curyung”) for the public purpose of constructing 
and operating an Assisted Living Facility, known as Marrulut Eniit Assisted Living (MEAL); and  
 
WHEREAS, after adoption of Ordinance 98-14 the City conveyed the Property to Curyung by 
Quitclaim Deed; and  
 
WHEREAS, the deed contained a restrictive covenant requiring the Property to be used for the 
public purpose of constructing and operating an assisted living facility (“the Restrictive 
Covenant”); and   
 
WHEREAS, Curyung conveyed the Property to MEAL via a deed containing the Restrictive 
Covenant; and   
 
WHEREAS, funding for MEAL is no longer sufficient to use the Property as an assisted living 
facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, residents in the facility were relocated and the building on the Property was 
vacated in August of 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, MEAL Board of Directors has submitted a formal request that the City amend the 
Restrictive Covenant to allow for senior low income housing as well as assisted living;   
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DILLINGHAM:  
 
 Section 1.  This is a non-code ordinance. 
 
 Section 2.  Property to have restrictions amended.  The disposed parcel to have 
restrictions, as applied in Ordinance 98-14, amended is defined as a Portion of Block 5, U.S. 
Survey 2732B, consisting of 48,804.64 square feet or 1.12 acres.  
 
 Section 3.  Conditions and Legislative Findings. 
 
1.  The City of Dillingham City Council finds that modifying the Restrictive Covenant to allow 
the Property to be used for senior low income housing as well as assisted living is a benefit to 
the citizens of Dillingham and the immediate Nushagak region. 
 

Page 41 of 98



 

City of Dillingham  Ordinance No. 2019-05 
Page 2 of 2 

2.  In the event that the property is no longer used for the specific purpose justifying the 
Restrictive Covenant as modified to include senior low income housing as well as assisted 
living, the title and structures thereon may revert to the City of Dillingham as provided for in 
D.M.C. 5.30.090. 
 
3.  The City will not be responsible for costs of alterations, or improvements at the facility. 
 
 Section 4. Public Notice.   This ordinance is being introduced on October 3, 2019 and 
a public hearing will be held at least thirty days hence, on or after November 2, 2019.  
 
 Section 5. Authorization to Modify Restrictive Covenant.  The mayor and city 
manager are hereby authorized to prepare, sign and record any and all additional documents 
necessary to modify the Restrictive Covenant to allow the Property to be used for senior low 
income housing as well as assisted living. 
 
 Section 6.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 
 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Dillingham City Council on  
November 7, 2019. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: [SEAL] 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lori Goodell, City Clerk 

Page 42 of 98



From: Brooks Chandler [mailto:BChandler@bcfaklaw.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 8:39 AM 
To: City Manager <manager@dillinghamak.us> 
Cc: Alice Ruby <alice.ruby@dillinghamak.us> 
Subject: Re: draft MEAL letter 
  

Greetings Tod: 
  
The letter is sufficient to raise the issue for council consideration.   
  
The letter has 2 alternative requests for modification of the original use restriction contained in the city 
ordinance authorizing the deed to the Tribe.  One to modify the use restriction so as to limit use of the 
property for senior housing.  The alternative requests an even less restrictive covenant to require the 
property to be used " for public purposes that promote the general welfare of the City and the Nushagak 
region". Regardless of what the City decides there will still be a use restriction imposed by AHFC as 
mentioned in our earlier memorandum.  This use restriction mandates use of the property for low 
income senior housing and will continue until 2050. 
  

2050 is a long ways away.  It does not make sense IMO to grant the alternative "public purpose" request 
in 2019.  Instead, once the AHFC covenant expires the City could evaluate use options at that time based 
on  2050 facts and circumstances.  And DMC 5.30.080(A)(2)  references "the public purpose justifying 
the disposal" as opposed to a more general "public purpose" which suggests this code section was not 
intended to authorize no bid property disposals just for a general public purpose.  But this is partly a 
policy issue for Council determination.   
  

Because the original covenant was required by a city ordinance, changing the covenant would need to 
be accomplished by non-code ordinance amending the earlier adopted ordinance.    If the new 
ordinance was adopted the city would record a document titled "Modification of Restrictive 
Covenant"  which would reference the ordinance and earlier recorded deed.  As required by DMC 
5.30.080(A)(3) a new waiver of sovereign immunity signed by the Curyung Tribe specific to the 
modified/new restrictive covenant would need to be obtained preferably before the ordinance was 
adopted.   
  

Once the official request has been received it is best if it is discussed by the Council who then provides 
direction as to whether an ordinance should be prepared to change the use restriction and if so which of 
the alternative restrictions should be included in the ordinance.  Alternatively two ordinances could be 
drafted and Council would select which of the ordinances to advance to public hearing.  That approach 
would get the ball rolling one Council meeting sooner. 
  

Let me know if you have any other questions about the MEAL request. 
  

   
Brooks Chandler 
Boyd, Chandler, Falconer & Munson  LLP 

911 W.  8th Ave. 
Suite 302 

Anchorage, AK 

907-272-8401 

Page 43 of 98

mailto:BChandler@bcfaklaw.com
mailto:manager@dillinghamak.us
mailto:alice.ruby@dillinghamak.us


Page 44 of 98



Page 45 of 98



Page 46 of 98



Page 47 of 98



Page 48 of 98



Page 49 of 98



Page 50 of 98



Page 51 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 52 of 98



Dillingham Municipal Code  

 

Page 1/2 

The Dillingham Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 19-04, passed August 1, 2019.  

 5.30.010 City rights and powers. 

A.    The city may sell, exchange, grant, dedicate, donate or otherwise dispose of city real property by any lawful 

means, as long as it follows the requirements of this title. 

B.    The city may dispose of real property when the city council finds that it is no longer needed for municipal 

purposes or the conveyance will promote a public purpose. The disposal ordinance which approves the disposal will 

include a statement of finding. 

C.    All disposals will be conducted in a fair and impartial manner. The city will have and may exercise all rights 

and powers in the disposal of real property as if the city were a private person. 

D.    Any document which is required to carry out the land decisions of the city council will be signed by the 

mayor, and attested by the city clerk or notarized. Whenever possible, the form of conveyance will be reviewed by 

the city attorney. 

E.    The city manager will furnish the city council with a summary which describes land title, the current city land 

inventory, and any anticipated problems which may occur in disposing the property. (Ord. 94-16 (part), 1995.) 

5.30.020 Procedures. 

A.    All disposals will be by ordinance. The ordinance will include: 

1.    Finding. A finding that the property is no longer needed for municipal purposes. If the property is being 

disposed at less than the appraised value, the reasons will be included in the finding. 

2.    Statement of Facts. A statement of facts which supports the finding. 

3.    Property Description. A legal description of the property. 

4.    Purpose or Type of Disposal. A description of the type of disposal (for example public, or economic 

development). 

5.    Method of Disposal. A description of the method of disposal (for example, auction, lottery, negotiated 

sale or donation). 

6.    Property Value. A description of the appraised property value and how it is determined (for example, 

appraisal or a letter of opinion). 

7.    Public Notice. A description of the time, place and specific steps which will be followed to conduct the 

disposal. 

B.    The city council will describe the appraised value of property in the ordinance for the disposal. The value of 

the property will be appraised value as determined by an appraisal or a letter of opinion prepared by a qualified 

appraiser or assessor. The appraisal will have been made within one hundred eighty days prior to council action. 

(Ord. 94-16 (part), 1995.) 

5.30.030 Public notice. 

A.    At least thirty days is required between the time a disposal ordinance is introduced and the time that it is 

finally adopted by the city council. Once an ordinance is introduced, it will be posted at those places outlined in 

municipal code for thirty days and may serve as the only public notice of disposal. (Ord. 94-16 (part), 1995.) 

5.30.040 Method of disposal. 

The city may dispose of municipal land using one of the following methods: 

A.    Sealed bid auction, with the property being sold to the qualified bidder who submits the highest sealed bid by 

the date and time specified in the notice and according to instructions to bidders. The minimum bid shall be the 

appraised value of the property as described in Section 5.30.020B, unless otherwise provided for in this title; 

Page 53 of 98



Dillingham Municipal Code  

 

Page 2/2 

The Dillingham Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 19-04, passed August 1, 2019.  

B.    Public outcry auction, with the property being sold at a public auction to the qualified bidder who makes the 

highest bid. The minimum bid shall be the appraised market value of the property as determined in Section 

5.30.020B, unless otherwise provided for in this title; 

C.    Negotiated sale or exchange. City land may be sold or exchanged by negotiation to a selected buyer or grantee 

if the city council determines that the sale or exchange is needed to protect or promote the public interest and the 

buyer or grantee has been selected without unfair discrimination among similarly situated persons; 

D.    Grant or donation. The city council may grant or dedicate real property to a municipality, state or federal 

entity, nonprofit corporation or association, or a Native village council, without a public sale and for consideration 

agreed upon between the city and the grantee if the city council finds that the grant or dedication is beneficial to the 

public. (Ord. 94-16 (part), 1995.) 

5.30.080 Types of disposals. 

The disposals described in this section can be authorized by the city council for less than the appraised value of the 

real property and may be exempted by the city council from the disposal methods described in Section 5.30.040 A 

through C. The ordinance which authorizes the disposal must comply with all other sections of this title. 

A.    Disposal for Public Purposes. The city council may dispose of real property to a municipality, state or federal 

entity, nonprofit corporation or association, or a Native village council, when the disposal is for a public purpose. 

This type of disposal is required to follow these requirements: 

1.    A finding that the disposal to the entity promotes a public purpose and a statement of facts supporting the 

finding; 

2.    A condition that the title may revert to the municipality in the event that the property is no longer used for 

the public purpose justifying the disposal; and 

3.    A waiver from the Native village council from any immunity from suit for the purpose of enforcing the 

reversion provision, if the disposal is to a Native village council. 

B.    Disposal for Economic Development. The city council may dispose of real property or an interest in real 

property to any person or entity to promote local trade or industry. The following requirements must be included in 

the non-code ordinance: 

1.    A finding that the property or interest in property being disposed of will be used to further local trade or 

industry; and 

2.    A condition that title will revert to the municipality in the event that the property is no longer used for the 

local trade or industry justifying the disposal. 

C.    Disposal to Settle Claims of Equitable Interest. The city may convey property to a person or entity who has a 

valid claim of equitable interest in the property or in a substantial improvement located upon the property. 

D.    Miscellaneous Disposals. The city council may settle disputed claims or litigation by authorizing disposal of 

real property or an interest in real property. (Ord. 94-16 (part), 1995.) 

Page 54 of 98



 Meeting Date: October 3, 2019 
  

                  
City of Dillingham                                                                                                        Resolution No. 2019-25 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-25 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO APPROVE A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF DILLINGHAM AND THE PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATION  

 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Employee Association (“PSEA”) represents the City of 
Dillingham’s (“City”) Public Safety Department employees (“Members”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has had an agreement with PSEA from July 1, 2016 and June 30, 2019; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and PSEA have reached a tentative three (3) year collective bargaining 
agreement (“CBA”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the CBA shall take effect July 1, 2019, and will remain in full force and effect 
through June 30, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CBA is subject to ratification by the Members and approval by the Dillingham 
City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Members will soon vote on the tentative CBA; and  
 
WHEREAS, the ratified CBA authorizes a 2% wage increase on July 1, 2019, a 1% wage 
increase on July 1, 2020, and an increase of 2 % on July 1, 2021;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Dillingham City Council has authorized the 
City Manager to approve the CBA between the City and PSEA commencing on July 1, 2019 
and ending on June 30, 2022.   
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Dillingham City Council on 
October 3, 2019. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
_______________________________ 
Lori Goodell, City Clerk  

Page 55 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 56 of 98



 Meeting Date: October 3, 2019 
  

  
   
City of Dillingham                                                                                                       Resolution No.2019-30 
Page 1 of 1   

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-30 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL SUPPORTING CURYUNG 
TRIBAL COUNCIL’S BBEDC ARCTIC TERN GRANT APPLICATION FOR 
PARTICIPATION AT THE 2019 AFN ELDERS AND YOUTH CONFERENCE 
 
Whereas, the City of Dillingham supports employment and educational activities for youth 
in the community; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Dillingham supports participation in the 2019 AFN Elders and Youth 
Conference by youth from the community; and 
 
Whereas, a grant from BBEDC under the Arctic Tern program will allow the Curyung 
Tribal Council to provide the activities described above;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this resolution supports the application for 
and receipt of a BBEDC Arctic Tern Grant and further supports Curyung Tribal Council 
youth program. 

 
PASSED and ADOPTED by a duly constituted quorum of the Dillingham City Council on 
October 3, 2019. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lori Goodell, City Clerk  

Page 57 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 58 of 98



CURYUNG TRIBAL COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION 2019-11 

A Resolution Authorizing Curyung Tribal Council Staff to Submit an Application 
to the 2019 Arctic Tern Grant Program 

WHEREAS, Curyung Tribal Council is the federally recognized Alaska Native tribe servmg its tribal 
members and the community of Dillingham, and 

WHEREAS, the Curyung Tribal Council supports youth activities that promote cultural awareness, leadership 
development, knowledge gathering, teambuilding, service work, self-sufficiency, food security, 
and wellness; and 

WHEREAS, the Curyung Tribal Council staff, in cooperation with the Dillingham City School District 

WHERAS, 

(DCSD) has prepared a project application to fund Dillingham City School District students to 
travel to Fairbanks for the 2019 AFN Elders & Youth Conference; and 

the Curyung Tribal Council acknowledges legal responsibility for assuring that all local, state 
and federal laws will be adhered to in any actions under this grant project; and 

WHEREAS, in accepting this grant, the Curyung Tribal Council agrees to indemnify, release, and hold 
BBEDC, its directors, officers, employees, contractors and agents, harmless from and against 
any disputes which might arise from activities and transactions performed or contemplated. This 
indemnity and release shall include costs and attorney's fees incurred by BBEDC in defending 
itself from any filed or threatened legal action related to this Grant or Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Curyung Tribal Council hereby supports the 2019 Arctic Tern 
Gran application as prepared by staff for the travel and participation of DCSD students to the 2019 Alaska 
Federation ofNatives Elders & Youth Conference in Fairbanks, Alaska in October 2019. 

CERTIFICATION: 
This resolution was duly considered and adopted at a meeting of the Curyung Tribal Council in Dillingham, 
Alaska on this / D day of September, 2019, at which a quorum of Council members were in attendance. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas Tilden, First Chief 
Curyung Tribal Council 

Attest: 

5faL /5, Zv/'7 . �, 

Date 

'Jbo /2 r 
1 Dite

Page 59 of 98



Page 60 of 98



Page 61 of 98



Page 62 of 98



Page 63 of 98



Page 64 of 98



Page 65 of 98



Page 66 of 98



Page 67 of 98



 

 

Department of Fish and Game 
 

DIVISION OF WILDLIFE CONSERVATION 
Central/Southwest Region 

 

1800 Glenn Highway, Suite 4 

Palmer, AK 99645-6736  

Main: 907.861.2100 

Fax: 907.861.2121 

 

September 26, 2019 

 

 

The City of Dillingham 

P.O. Box 889 

141 Main St. 

Dillingham, AK 99576  

 

To the City Clerk of Dillingham: 

 

My name is Lauren Watine, and I am writing to you today to express my interest in becoming an 

official Committee member of Friends of the Landfill (FOL).  I am the Area Wildlife Biologist 

for the Alaska Department of Fish and Game (ADF&G) stationed here in Dillingham and play an 

active role in the community for both my job and as a resident of the city.   

 

In my 4 months as the Area Biologist, I have met and worked with FOL on no less than 3 

occasions.  I have attended monthly meetings, helped on projects at the landfill (i.e., installing 

posts for the electric fence surrounding an active cell), and met with Paul Liedberg to discuss 

future directions for outreach and education in Dillingham and the surrounding areas.  I have also 

conducted site-visits to the Aleknagik Landfill, which has many more issues with bears than 

Dillingham’s landfill, likely because they do not have a group such as FOL that is engaged with 

the community and helps make simple changes that have far-reaching effects.  Paul and I have 

both spoken with their leaders and are working towards bringing Aleknagik into the FOL as 

“Friends.” 

 

Not only am I already familiar with the FOL and the challenges it faces to bring change to the 

Dillingham community, but as an ADF&G biologist whose efforts often focus on mitigating 

negative human-wildlife interactions, I am uniquely qualified to be a Committee member of the 

FOL.  I am consistently in the public’s view and am thus able to reach out to many people about 

issues of importance.  Additionally, as an ADF&G biologist, any suggestions I provide to the 

community has the added weight of my profession and my agency behind it.  Thank you for your 

consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Lauren N. Watine, PhD 

Area Wildlife Biologist 

 

Enclosure: Letter of Interest 

Page 68 of 98



Page 69 of 98



Page 70 of 98



Page 71 of 98



Page 72 of 98



 

 

 

 
Department of Commerce, Community, 

and Economic Development 
 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

August 16, 2019 
 
Dillingham  
Attn: City Clerk  
Via Email: cityclerk@dillinghamak.us; CCacciola@bcfaklaw.com; lrasmussen@bcfaklaw.com 
 
 
 
 

License Number: 16915 

License Type: Retail Marijuana Store 

Licensee: Bristol Bay Bud Company, LLC 

Doing Business As: BRISTOL BAY BUD COMPANY 

Physical Address: 233 Airport Road 
Dillingham, AK 99576 

Designated Licensee: Heather Allen 

Phone Number: 907-357-2518 

Email Address: hrgsenterprises.ak@gmail.com 
  

☒ License Renewal Application                ☐ Endorsement Renewal Application 
 

AMCO has received a complete renewal application and/or endorsement renewal application for a 
marijuana establishment within your jurisdiction.  This notice is required under 3 AAC 
306.035(c)(2).  Application documents will be sent to you separately via ZendTo. 

To protest the approval of this application pursuant to 3 AAC 306.060, you must furnish the director and 
the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the protest within 60 days of the 
date of this notice, and provide AMCO proof of service of the protest upon the applicant. 
 

3 AAC 306.060 states that the board will uphold a local government protest and deny an application for 
a marijuana establishment license unless the board finds that a protest by a local government is 
arbitrary, capricious, and unreasonable.  If the protest is a “conditional protest” as defined in 3 AAC 
306.060(d)(2) and the application otherwise meets all the criteria set forth by the regulations, the 
Marijuana Control Board may approve the license renewal, but require the applicant to show to the 
board’s satisfaction that the requirements of the local government have been met before the director 
issues the license. 
 

At the May 15, 2017, Marijuana Control Board meeting, the board delegated to me the authority to 
approve renewal applications with no protests, objections, or notices of violation. However, if a timely 
protest or objection is filed for this application, or if any notices of violation have been issued for this 
license, the board will consider the application. In those situations, a temporary license will be issued 
pending board consideration. 
  

 
 
If you have any questions, please email amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov. 

Page 73 of 98

mailto:hrgsenterprises.ak@gmail.com
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


 
 

 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell 
Director 

Page 74 of 98



Page 75 of 98



Page 76 of 98



Page 77 of 98



Page 78 of 98



Page 79 of 98



Page 80 of 98



Page 81 of 98



C
li

en
t:

JJ
C

 E
n
te

rp
ri

se
s,

 I
n
c.

P
ro

je
ct

: 
D

il
li

n
g
h
am

 A
ir

p
o
rt

 G
at

e 
Im

p
ro

v
em

en
ts

 P
ro

je
ct

S
IZ

E
P

A
S

S
IN

G

L
o

w
H

ig
h

3
"

1
0

0
%

2
"

1
0

0
%

1
 1

/2
"

1
0

0
%

1
"

1
0

0
%

3
/4

"
1

0
0

%

1
/2

"
1

0
0

%

3
/8

"
1

0
0

%

N
o

. 
4

1
0

0
%

N
o

. 
8

8
0

%

N
o

. 
1

0
 

7
3

%

N
o

. 
1

6
4

4
%

N
o

. 
3

0
1

7
%

N
o

. 
4

0
9

%

N
o

. 
5

0
4

%

N
o

. 
1

0
0

1
%

N
o

. 
2

0
0

0
.7

%

©
 E

M
C

 E
n
g
in

ee
ri

n
g
, 

L
L

C
, 

 2
0

1
4

P
a
rt

ic
le

 S
iz

e 
(m

m
)

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 B

y:
Jo

hn
 R

eg
o,

 P
.E

.
La

b 
M

an
ag

er

83
01

 O
ld

 S
ew

ar
d 

H
w

y.
An

ch
or

ag
e,

 A
K 

99
51

8
(9

07
) 6

44
-3

92
3

(9
07

) 6
44

-0
99

7

58
86

 E
. S

ho
p 

C
irc

le
Pa

lm
er

, A
K 

99
64

5
(9

07
) 6

31
-6

04
7

(9
07

) 6
31

-6
04

8

L
ab

 N
o

.
P

-3
4
4
-1

9

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

R
ec

ei
v

ed
S

ep
te

m
b
er

 1
8
, 
2
0
1
9

R
ep

o
rt

ed
S

ep
te

m
b
er

 1
8
, 
2
0
1
9

S
ie

v
e 

A
n

a
ly

si
s

A
S

T
M

 C
 1

3
6

Jo
b

 N
o

.
2
6
6
8

S
am

p
le

 L
o
ca

ti
o
n
:

M
at

er
ia

l 
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

:

C
it

y
 o

f 
D

il
li

n
g
h
am

, 
B

y
 C

li
en

t

S
an

d

0
.0

%

1
0
.0

%

2
0
.0

%

3
0
.0

%

4
0
.0

%

5
0
.0

%

6
0
.0

%

7
0
.0

%

8
0
.0

%

9
0
.0

%

1
0
0

.0
%

0
.0

0
1

0
.0

1
0

.1
1

1
0

1
0
0

Percent Passing by Weight

Page 82 of 98



City of Dillingham – RFP 2019-06 Furnish Aggregate for FY20  Page 1 of 4 

 

   
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
RFP 2019-06 Furnish Aggregate for FY20 

 
The City of Dillingham is soliciting sealed bids to supply gravel and sand to the landfill and city 
maintenance yard.  The selected firm or individual will enter into a term contract in effect from the 
date of execution through June 30, 2020. Bids will be accepted for: 
 

Materials                                       Amount              
Washed Sand 1,250 cubic yards 
Pit-Run Gravel 7,800 cubic yards 

 
Bid documents can be found at: www.dillinghamak.us/projects. 
 
Inquiries should be sent to Jean Barrett, Public Works Director at 907-842-4598 or via email at 
publicworks@dillinghamak.us. 
 
Bid deadline is 4:00 p.m., Thursday, August 22, 2019, followed by the bid opening.  A contract to 
award will be authorized at the City Council meeting on September 5, 2019.   
 
SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Submittal Requirements and Information  
To be considered, all proposals must be delivered to the address below, on or before the deadline 
no later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, August 22, 2019.  Submissions must include a signed copy 
of Attachment A, Aggregate Bid. 
 
Please mark the envelope to identify the project:  RFP 2019-06 Furnish Aggregate FY20.  
 
Delivery instructions – mail or hand deliver in a sealed envelope to: 
  
 City of Dillingham – Planning Department 
 PO Box 889 
 Dillingham, AK  99576 
 
Required Proposal Content 
Return the following attachments to the City of Dillingham by the due date: 

 Attachment A. Aggregate Bid 
 
Electronic and faxed proposals will not be accepted.  

Page 83 of 98

http://www.dillinghamak.us/projects
mailto:publicworks@dillinghamak.us


City of Dillingham – RFP 2019-06 Furnish Aggregate for FY20  Page 2 of 4 

Proof of Insurance and Licensing 
Responding bidders will be required to provide the following prior to “Notice of Award”: 

 Copy of 2019 City of Dillingham Business License; 
 Current State of Alaska Business License; 
 Certification of Insurance and Workers Compensation as required under AS23.30 naming 

all employees; 
 Proof of commercial insurance, covering bodily injury, death, and property damage with a 

single limit not less than one million ($1,000,000) dollars; 
 Vehicle liability insurance including applicable uninsured/underinsured coverage with 

limits of liability not less than one million ($500,000) dollars per occurrence combined 
single limit bodily injury and property damage. 

 
All insurances, workers’ compensation insurance, commercial general liability insurance and 
motor vehicle liability insurance, as described above shall include an endorsement stating the 
following:  sixty (60) days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction change, 
shall be sent to the City Manager, PO Box 889, Dillingham, AK  99576. 
 
Owner/Operators are eligible to submit a bid, as long as they meet the minimum State 
requirements for operating as an owner operator.  
 
Scope of Service  
The contractor shall furnish and deliver aggregate according to the following specifications and 
conditions: 
 

1. Materials:  Gravel and sand shall contain no frozen material, mulch, roots, sod, dirt or 
other deleterious matter.  The material shall be graded within the limitations shown below: 
 

Sand   
3/8” Sieve  100 % Passing  
#4” Sieve  95-100 % Passing 
N0. 200 Sieve   0-2 % Passing 

Pit Run  
6” Sieve 100 % Passing 
No. 200 Sieve          0 – 6 % Passing 
 

2. Sampling:  The contractor shall submit a relative sample of the material to be supplied.  
Sampling details need to be coordinated with the Public Works Director. The City reserves 
the right to have samples tested to confirm to specs prior to and during delivery.  The 
contractor will bear all cost related to the testing.  Materials failing to conform to the 
specifications will not be used and will cause the City to declare the contractor in default 
and cancel the contract.  
 

3. Quantity:   
The total quantity of sand to be purchased will be approximately ONE THOUSAND TWO 
HUNDRED FIFTY (1,250) cubic yards.  
 
The total quantity of gravel to be purchased will be approximately SEVEN THOUSAND 
EIGHT HUNDRED (7,800) cubic yards.  
 

4. Method of Measurement:  Gravel and sand shall be measured by volume, in the truck, at 
the point of delivery.  
 

5. Time Line:    
Pit run deliveries may be sequenced into three different time periods, as directed by the 
Public Works Director.  

Page 84 of 98



City of Dillingham – RFP 2019-06 Furnish Aggregate for FY20  Page 3 of 4 

Conditions of Offering and Acceptance 
This is a Request for Proposal/Bid only and is not a guarantee the City of Dillingham will 
purchase any or all of the products or services indicated in this invitation.  
 
The City of Dillingham reserves the right to reject or accept any and all bids, to waive 
irregularities or informalities in the procurement process, and to give particular attention 
to the qualifications of the proposer.  
 
The City reserves the right to revise or clarify the Request for Proposal/Bid, respond to 
questions, and/or extend or shorten the due date of process.    
 
The City retains the right to cancel the Request for Proposal/Bid process if the City 
determines it is in their best interest.  Any cost incurred by proposers for the preparation 
and submittal of the bid is the sole responsibility of the bidder.  
 
A bid may be corrected or withdrawn by a written request received prior to the deadline 
for receipt of bid proposals.  
 
All bid proposals and other material submitted become City property and may be returned 
only at their option.  
 
The City assumes no responsibility or liability for the transmission, delay, or delivery of bid 
proposals by either public or private carriers.  
 
Any and all media announcements pertaining to this RFP require the City’s prior written 
approval.  
 
The bidder agrees to allow the City at least 60 days from the bid close date to enter into a 
contract with the selected bidder for the price offered by the bidder.  
 
The City intends to award a contract, subject to negotiation of a satisfactory agreement 
based upon the City’s standard professional services contract form.  
 
Contractor shall in performance of a contract, comply with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, ordinances, orders, rules and regulations applicable to its performance.  
 
Contractor must be in compliance with Dillingham Municipal Code 4.20.240, Tax 
Delinquent List.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85 of 98



City of Dillingham – RFP 2019-06 Furnish Aggregate for FY20  Page 4 of 4 

Attachment A.  Aggregate Bid 
 

City of Dillingham 
RFP 2019-06  Furnish Aggregate for FY20 

 
The furnishing and delivery of washed sand and gravel shall be in accordance with the Request 
for Proposal/Bid and Specifications for the term of the contract.  The price per cubic yard shall 
include the entire supplier costs associated with providing aggregate and delivery.  The contract 
shall remain in effect from the date of execution through June 30, 2020. The City reserves the 
right to purchase up to 25% more materials at the unit prices bid.  
 
1. Contractor may bid one or both options listed below: 

Materials    Amount 
Washed Sand (Streets)  1,250 cubic yards 
Pit-Run Gravel (Landfill)             5,500 cubic yards 
Pit-Run Gravel (Streets)  2,300 cubic yards 

 
2. Complete and submit this document in a sealed envelope for the items you are bidding.  
 

$________________________ Bid Amount per c.y. - Washed Sand Delivered (Streets) 
 
$________________________ Bid Amount per c.y. - Pit-Run Gravel Delivered (Landfill) 
 
$ ________________________ Bid Amount per c.y. - Pit-Run Gravel Delivered (Streets) 

 
 
 
Contractor Name: __________________________________Title: ____________________ 
 
d/b/a Company Name: ___________________________________________________ ___  
 
City Business License Number: ________________________________________________ 
 
Alaska State Business License Number: _________________________________________ 
 
Contractor Signature: ________________________________Date:___________________ 
   (Authorized Agent) 
Mailing Address: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone Contact: ________________________________________    __________________ 
 
Email Address: _________________________________________    __________________ 

Page 86 of 98



Gustavus PFAS Action Coalition 
PO Box 234 
Gustavus, AK 99826 
 
August 28, 2019 
 
Jason Brune, Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 
P.O. Box 111800 
Juneau, Alaska 99811 
 
Dear Commissioner Brune, 
 
We, the Gustavus PFAS Action Coalition, the Alaska PFAS Action Coalition, and Alaska Community 
Action on Toxics, on behalf of the people of Alaska, hereby request that the Alaska Department of 
Environmental Conservation (ADEC) honor regulation 18 AAC 75.325(f)(1)(D) which states: 
 

“A responsible person shall to the maximum extent practicable...prevent, eliminate, or minimize potential 
adverse impacts to human health, safety, and welfare, and to the environment, onsite and offsite, from any hazardous 
substance remaining at the site.”  

 
In light of the PFAS contamination originating from aqueous film-forming foam (AFFF) at airports 
throughout our state, we ask that ADEC hold the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public 
Facilities (ADOT&PF) accountable as a Responsible Party to the fullest regulatory extent. Specifically, we 
request that when water samples are taken to test for PFAS, that a full panel of PFAS chemicals be 
analyzed and reported to the public and the property owners. Labs running the EPA method 537 for PFAS 
testing are currently measuring at least 14 analytes, yet ADOT&PF is only reporting the sum of two 
analytes (PFOA and PFOS) to the public and the property owners.  We are simply asking that the state 
acquire, retain, and make accessible any available data (both past and present) on the levels of all 
measured PFAS chemicals. Any cost associated with acquiring these data would be minimal, per 
Commissioner Jason Brune at the House Resource Committee hearing on May 10, 2019. 
 
The state regulation cited above and in Mr. Brune’s August 20, 2018 memo (updated April 9, 2019) 
references the requirement that a Responsible Party go the the “maximum extent practicable”. ADOT&PF’s 
current approach (reporting only two analytes) falls short of this requirement but ADEC can easily rectify 
this shortcoming by requiring ADOT&PF to report the full panel of PFAS chemicals.  
 
Please honor our state regulations and our health by making this information accessible. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Gustavus PFAS Action Coalition (GPAC) 
Alaska PFAS Action Coalition (APAC) 

Page 87 of 98



Alaska Community Action on Toxics (ACAT) 
Southeast Alaska Conservation Council (SEACC) 
Wake Up Alaska to the Toxic Environmental Reality (WATER) 
The Nature Conservancy 
 

Page 88 of 98



September 9, 2019 

City of Dillingham 

PO Box 889 

Dillingham, Alaska 99576 

Re:  Introduction to APEI 

Dear City Council members, 

The City of Dillingham has procured insurance coverage for the current fiscal year though Alaska Public 

Entity Insurance (APEI).  I wanted to take a moment to describe how APEI is different from a typical 

insurance company, the kinds of services we provide, and what it means to be an APEI member. 

APEI is not a commercial insurance company, but rather a joint insurance arrangement, or “pool” of 

Alaskan school districts and municipalities who have agreed to work together to assume the risk of 
losses and purchase excess insurance coverage as a group. Most public entities that participate in a 

joint insurance arrangement have been a member of that pool for a number of years, and share in the 

benefits and losses of the pool as a group.  Pools differ from commercial insurance in that a primary 

focus of the pool is on loss control; that is, we work actively with our members to help them find ways 

to reduce the number of incidents and accidents that can lead to expensive insurance claims. We do 

this by providing our members with a wide variety of services, such as: 

 On site and online training for staff, management, and governing bodies;

 Safety inspections of member facilities;

 Email and telephone consultation services on safety and Human Resources related topics;

 Safety grants of $1,000 ‐ $5,000 (depending on the size of your organization) to assist in the

purchase of safety equipment or training;

 Reimbursement of some legal expenses for consultations regarding employee terminations and

reports of potential child sexual abuse

 A Loss Control Manual provided to all APEI members and containing information and resources

for risk management in your organization; and

 Premium credits for completing loss control activities and submitting documentation of those

activities to APEI.

An important aspect of your insurance coverage that we want you to be aware of pertains to your 

Employment Practices Liability (EPL) coverage, which protects the City if it were to be sued by an 

employee or former employee claiming harassment, unfair termination, etc.  

As a condition of this coverage, APEI members are required to consult with an attorney prior to 

terminating an employee. While governing bodies typically do not oversee these decisions for the 

majority of the organization’s staff, they are usually responsible for the hiring (and firing) of one or more 

individuals that oversee the day‐to‐day operations of the organization ‐ city managers, superintendents, 

etc. We want to ensure that, if you end this employment relationship, you are aware that this EPL 

Page 89 of 98



Introduction to APEI 2019‐20    Page 2 

coverage condition applies. APEI is available to assist governing bodies in identifying legal counsel and 

we also offer a legal fee reimbursement for up to one hour of legal consultation per termination.  

If you would like to learn more about our loss control services, visit the Loss Control page at the APEI 

website at https://akpei.com/loss‐control‐materials/, or give us a call. We are happy to answer 

questions and always welcome feedback about our services and suggestions on how we can help our 

members.  Your broker, Samantha Stringer, is also a good source of information about APEI and your risk 

management needs. 

Sincerely, 

 

Barbara, Thurston 

Executive Director, APEI 

Page 90 of 98



IMMEDIATE ENROLLMENT OPPORTUNITIES AT THE ALASKA JOB CORPS 

CENTER IN PALMER 

Free career training and education for individuals 16–24 years old 

 

PALMER, Ala. (Sept. 09, 2019) – The Alaska Job Corps Center has immediate openings for 

individuals seeking free career training in the nation’s leading industries, including construction, 

finance and business, health care, homeland security, hospitality, and renewable resources and 

energy. 

 

Offered by the U.S. Department of Labor, Job Corps is the largest nationwide residential career 

technical training and education program in the country and has been operating for more than 50 

years.  The program helps eligible young people ages 16 through 24 complete their high school 

education, earn college credits, train for meaningful careers, and connect with employment, 

apprenticeship, military, or higher education opportunities.  Job Corps centers also provide on-

campus housing, nutritious meal options, basic medical care, uniforms and class supplies, and 

enrichment and recreation activities.   

 

“The basic eligibility requirements for entering Job Corps are simple,” said Debra Carr, acting 

national director of Job Corps.  “The applicant must be 16 through 24 years of age, have a low 

income, and have educational and employment barriers or deficits.  The program strongly 

encourages any individuals who meet these requirements, and are seeking opportunity to further 

their education and career pathway, to learn more about the many benefits Job Corps offers.”  

 

Job Corps is an open-entry and open-exit program that accepts new students on a weekly basis. 

To obtain additional information about the specific training programs and educational 

opportunities offered at the Alaska Job Corps Center, interested individuals can contact Job 

Corps by visiting jobcorps.gov, or by calling (800) 733-JOBS. 

 

About Job Corps 

Job Corps is a federal career technical training and education program for young people who 

aspire to higher-paying careers and higher education. With 123 residential and nonresidential 

locations nationwide, training is available in the nation’s fastest-growing industries to eligible 

16- through 24-year-olds. 

 

### 

 

Page 91 of 98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 92 of 98



Page 93 of 98



Page 94 of 98



Page 95 of 98



Page 96 of 98



Page 97 of 98



Page 98 of 98


	00 A 10.03.2019 Regular Mtg Agenda
	03 M 09.09.19 Regular Meeting
	04a R 2019-29 Commendation to Suzanna Henry
	05a admin 20191003
	05a admn Dillingham 2019 Lobby.9 FINAL SEP
	05a clksr 100319
	05a clksr2 2.09.050 Exe Session
	05a fin 2019 08 Financial Report
	05a fir 100319
	05a libsr092019
	05a plnr 100319
	05a psr 10.03.19
	05a snr 100319
	05b M 07.25.19 Code Review
	05b M 08.19.19 FB Meeting
	08a O 2019-05 MEAL modify land use restrictions w bwc edits
	08a Sept. 2019 Attorney Email MEAL
	08a1 MEAL Request 2019
	08a2 O 98-14
	08a3 DMC 5.30 Land Disposal
	08b R 2019-25 PSEA Collective Bargaining Agreement
	08c R 2019-30 Support Arctic Tern Program
	08c1 Resolution 2019-11
	08c2 2018 AFN Arctic Tern
	09a3 D McLean
	09a3 LNW FOL LOI - letterhead
	10b 16915 adm check
	10b 16915 BBB License Renewal Notice
	If you have any questions, please email amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov.

	10c AM 2019-11 Modify FY20 Aggregate
	10c1 AM 2019-06 Aggregate Contract
	10c2 RFP 2019-06 NOI REV
	10c2.0 2668 Sieve 9-23-19 (P-344-19) Sand
	10c3 RFP 2019-06 Aggregate FY20
	17 Full PFAS Panel request 20190711
	18 Dillingham`WelcomeLetter
	19 Center-Specific Immediate Open Release_ALASKA
	20 09.2019 Citizen comment



